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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be
a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China
Ocean Group Development Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.

ERBEXBZRBERLTE ([BZF]) GEM
ZHE

GEMBIE L » IR NEA TR M — B LHHH
1B S AT BE A EBRF LB 0L TS
ARERERR - HEREMALET BEER
REARMEERR YECBERERNES
HITHEHRERE -

HRGEMETAREEATNEAT  EGEME
ENFSTAEBRRBEITERBEEZRSFEASZ
BANTEEBEK BEELIRBEGEMEE
HWEZSEERBEENTS -

BERGREEMBRAARBEIMHRREZ
AEBMTRE HHERMA TR TERET
fa] 2287 - A B R BT 5 A AN R & 2 BB S AE 1]
BB 17 9 2R ) EE A B KRR A% 5 U B 1T 51 B2 1E 1]
BRAEEREE-

A& T E A B 15 B AR S AT GEMAE 75 L T A
AI([GEM_ LT AR A ) L 7E - BIEH B B A B &
FEEZRRBRAA] ([ARA)2EH  EEF
([EF]) HAREEERHFRESIMAESE
BEE -BEFAEEH S ELHEER BK
FHARFE ABERBEREEERNT EY
REER TR AW BRI GFEAD KRR
& IR BB R EL b IR EE B A AT AT BR AT 3 AR
WEBARE -

FEEFEEZRREEMRAT  2020-2021F 1



Contents B %

21

25

40

55

65

67

69

72

74

2

Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Biographies of Directors and Company Secretary
Report of the Directors

Corporate Governance Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o]
|
I
e

x

3

off

#H

IR E R AT

EENRAMERE

EEEHE

EEERARE

8 A2 B

REMBRRHREK

RE M B AN E

China Ocean Group Development Limited Annual Report 2020-2021



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Rongsheng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Fan Guocheng
Ms. Wei Qing

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lui Chun Pong
Mr. Cai Haiming
Mr. Yang Yong
(resigned on 23 April 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Man Hing
Mr. Li Cao
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lam Chi Ming, Francis

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Ms. Wei Qing

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Wei Qing
Mr. Lam Chi Ming, Francis

Corporate Information

aEEH

Exg

HITES

BRERE (EEREFEHNTTE)
S B 5 A

ML L

FHITES

BIRFAALE

2B EE

BBERE
(RZE-ZFFA -+ =HFHE)

BAFHTES
MXEEE
FHREE
EEZELLE

RNEWE
MERLEE

EREIE
M+
EENR K
R L
MERLEE

FESEEERREEMRAT  2020-2021F 3



Corporate Information (Continued)

DEER (&)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (chairman)
Mr. Lam Man Hing
Mr. Li Cao

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (chairman)
Mr. Li Cao

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Rongsheng (chairman)
Mr. Li Cao
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John

AUDITOR

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited

LEGAL ADVISER
Wang & Co.

PRINCIPAL BANKER
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

ERERE
SEBERE (ZFE)
MXERE
FHREE

FHWEES
SEELE (ZFE)
FHRTE

REEES
BlSRAESXRE (X/F)
FHREE
TEFBELE

3 ]

Mz BB (BA) Bt EHAARA A

EEER

T EEATT
FEARBRIT
RFIRITHR AT

4 China Ocean Group Development Limited Annual Report 2020-2021



REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 03, 22/F., China Resources Building,

26 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN CHINA

Flat 14, 17th Floor, Block B,
New Century Business Centre,
Shi Xia North, No. 2 Street,
Futian District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong, China

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICES
Principal registrar

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House,

2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda

Branch registrar

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.chinaoceangroup.com.hk

STOCK CODE
8047

Corporate Information (Continued)

*EEH(HE)

AMREE

Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

ENERETRTEERE LR

BAEET
B 1B 2657
FEHRE22ME03E

FEEELEEMEY
FEERE
wYImEEE
AEL=E
AL EmBEP L
BEE171214%E

RGOBFEELTE

FERRE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House,

2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

EREDE
BESERARAT
BB
SREANERI183%

& FH L5 4E

it

www.chinaoceangroup.com.hk

B A3 5%
8047

HEDEFEEBREAMRAT  2020-2021F K 5



Chairman’s Statement

ETE®E

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby present
the Annual Report of the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Year"”) to
our shareholders.

RESULTS

The Revenue for the Group decreased to approximately HK$621.7
million for the Year as compared to approximately HK$826.5
million in 2020. The Group’s aquatic products business generated
a total revenue of approximately HK$618.9 million, the fishing
operation also contributed to approximately HK$2.8 million to
the Group’s total revenue. The Group has continued to develop
its business relationships with its business partners and potential
partners in the PRC in order to increase and explore new sources of
income. The Group continued to concentrate on aquatic products
during the Year.

The Group recorded a decrease in gross profit to approximately
HK$41.6 million in the Year as compared to approximately
HK$87.1 million in 2020. The Group will continue to control the
material costs and explore new business opportunities, so as to
improve the gross profit of the Group. The gross profit margin,
excluding interest income received from the money lending
business, decreased from 10.5% to 6.68% during the Year. Gross
profit margin of aquatic products from fishing operation were
generally higher than from supply chain operation.

Net loss attributable to equity holders of the Company for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$377.8 million as compared to a
profit of approximately HK$28.0 million in 2020. During the year,
the administrative expenses increased to approximately HK$67.5
million from HK$45.4 million in 2020 which is mainly due to
written off of other receivables, however this is partially offset by
the Group’s tightening of cost control and the restriction imposed
on travelling because of COVID-19, travelling and transportation
expenses reduced significantly. Apart from the written off of other
receivables, the major components in administrative expenses
being salaries and welfare for both staff and directors; rent and
rates, legal and professional fee and depreciation.

ANERXEES ([EFE ) DERTRLAL
ARAKBAR (56 [ AEE)BRE-F =~ —
FZAS AR ((REE)HFE

REBRAFE 2 Wamm D> E478%621,723,000
LM T T F LA B %826,513,0007T ° A&
EEKEREBEEL S 618,937,000t Ay 42
W BEBESTARNEERBRTERNBE
2,786,0007T - NEE B R EE P R EBBA
NBEBENEBBRIEN MRS AW AR
R REBRAFEEHET TR KER-

TEERAFEHBEENBLEHBE
41,554,000 M EBE-_ZEFLHABE
87,075,0007T ° AN £ [3] i 48 48 12 i A R B 28 37 $]
SMEBHE URSAEENEF - RHOME
REBFTE 2 F B ATE  NFEREF EHR
10.5% 2 £6.68% ° 1 E 1 2 KE MK EF
E—RbEEEES -

RFEERARFBREREABRGLGBEOREEK
377,799,000 T —ZE =T F A M 4B &
28,029,000c A AHIE - fTHHASZIAH =%
& 7 B ¥45,396,000 T 18 11 2 4975 #67,532,000
T EERREMENEETE  RELEAE
& 05 A A ) BICOVID-19%F 2 R 75 AN R 41
2R M AR R S AR PR AR A R AN SR B B B R A9 AR
AFEHE LA R FE R 1T BUR 7 B 3f 0 .88 - 1T I
TEBHERBHEBRIMEENHFSMERN A
CMEM FEEMNEXERARITE -

6 China Ocean Group Development Limited Annual Report 2020-2021



During the year, the Group incurred heavy impairment losses
on goodwill and trade receivables of HK$116.97million and
HK$178.03 million respectively; these impairment losses amounted
to approximately 77.7% of the loss for the year. Due to the of
the continuity of the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group had
experienced difficulties in the renewal of fishing licenses from
overseas government because fishing vessels inspection by PRC
officials, which is one of the pre-requisite for renewal, was
unable to carry out due to travel restrictions being imposed. As
management was unable to estimate the time required to re-
commence the existing overseas fishing operation in the current
overseas country, the management began to seek for alternative
overseas fishing grounds, thus, the goodwill arising from the
acquisition of the Company’s subsidiaries were fully impaired.
Again, because of COVID-19, the Group had experienced delays
in settlement from its customers, the management had made
various request to urge for the settlement of the amounts due,
but because of the slow settlement from the customer, the
management has made impairment losses on the outstanding
balance as the yearend date based on the settlement pattern from
the customer.

Included in the total assets, there were advance payments to
suppliers amounting to HK$517.3 million (31 March 2020:
HK$626.6 million); as a trading practice, the suppliers usually
require the Group to place a deposit to secure the supply of aqua-
products. The amount of deposit were made in accordance with
the supply contracts with the supplier, however, with reduction
in trading volume, some of these deposits were applied to the
settlement of purchases to the suppliers. The Group has performed
an expected loss assessment to write down the advance payment
to suppliers to its fair value.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Supply chain management and related services

The supply chain management remains the main focus of the
Group. The Group is providing intermediate service between
suppliers and customers and it takes advantage of the business
networks and resources in order to assist small and medium -
sized enterprises in various industries to minimise the overall
operation cost. Owing to the solid financial background of the
Group and the great demand for supply chain service in mainland
China, the Group has established many strategic partnerships with
other supply chain companies, so as to undertake the operation
of purchase and sales based on the services on import and export
trade, logistic, customs clearance and storage.

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Chairman'’s Statement (Continued)

ETFE®HE (HFE)

During the Year, the Group continued its supply chain management
services of aquatic products. The Group also expanded its
operation to vertically integrate with fishing subsidiaries to secure
the supply of aquatic products.

PROSPECT

With the lead of the management team, the Company is actively
exploring business opportunities in other sectors to diversify risks
and broaden the sources of income of the Company. The Company
has adequate resources to continue with its business operations,
and will continue to focus on its corporate objective to develop
current businesses in order to strengthen its competitiveness,
integrate its capital resources and contribute a maximum wealth to
our equity holders.

The Company’s supply chain management business has been
adversely affected by the continuity of the outbreak of COVID-19
during the Year, however, the Company will pay close attention
to its performance and future development. At the same time,
the management will continuously monitor and review the overall
operation and financial performance of the Group’s businesses
so as to cope with the ever-changing business environment. The
management will continue to proactively seek other promising
investment and business opportunities to broaden the source of
income of the Group and enhance value to the shareholders of
the Company through investment and/or acquisitive business or
projects that have promising outlooks and prospects, and with
the Group’s management team having extensive experience in
the marine fishing business, the Group will also explore further
opportunities in the marine fishing business.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my gratitude to all members of the Board and staff for
their dedication and contribution to the Group and to those who
have supported us. We will continue to make our best efforts in
developing our businesses to produce good economic results and
better return for our shareholders.

Liu Rongsheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW
Supply chain management and related services

The supply chain management service remains the main focus of
the Group. The Group is providing intermediate service between
suppliers and customers and it takes advantage of the business
networks and resources in order to assist small and medium -
sized enterprises in various industries to minimise the overall
operation cost. Owing to the solid financial background of the
Group and the great demand for supply chain service in mainland
China, the Group has established many strategic partnerships with
other supply chain companies, so as to undertake the operation
of purchase and sales based on the services on import and export
trade, logistic, customs clearance and storage.

During the year, the Group continued its supply chain management
services of aquatic products. The Group also expanded its
operation to vertically integrate with fishing subsidiaries to secure
the supply of aquatic products.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Revenue for the Group decreased to approximately HK$621.7
million for the Year as compared to approximately HK$826.5
million in 2020. The Group's aquatic products business generated
a total revenue of approximately HK$618.9 million, the fishing
operation also contributed to approximately HK$2.8 million to
the Group’s total revenue. The Group has continued to develop
its business relationships with its business partners and potential
partners in the PRC in order to increase and explore new sources of
income. The Group continued to concentrate on aquatic products
during the Year.

The Group recorded a decrease in gross profit to approximately
HK$41.6 million in the Year as compared to approximately
HK$87.1 million in 2020. The Group will continue to control the
material costs and explore new business opportunities, so as to
improve the gross profit of the Group. The gross profit margin,
excluding interest income received from the money lending
business, decreased from 10.5% to 6.68% during the Year. Gross
profit margin of aquatic products from fishing operation were
generally higher than from supply chain operation.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENmER DN (&)

Net loss attributable to equity holders of the Company for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$377.8 million as compared to a
profit of approximately HK$28.0 million in 2020. During the year,
the administrative expenses increased to approximately HK$67.5
million from HK$45.4 million in 2020 which is mainly due to
written off of other receivables, however this is partially offset by
the Group’s tightening of cost control and the restriction imposed
on travelling because of COVID-19, travelling and transportation
expenses reduced significantly. Apart from the written off of other
receivables, the major components in administrative expenses
being salaries and welfare for both staff and directors; rent and
rates, legal and professional fee and depreciation.

During the year, the Group incurred heavy impairment losses
on goodwill and trade receivables of HK$116.97million and
HK$178.03 million respectively; these impairment losses amounted
to approximately 77.7% of the loss for the year. Due to the of
the continuity of the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group had
experienced difficulties in the renewal of fishing licenses from
overseas government because fishing vessels inspection by PRC
officials, which is one of the pre-requisite for renewal,
unable to carry out due to travel restrictions being imposed. As
management was unable to estimate the time required to re-
commence the existing overseas fishing operation in the current
overseas country, the management began to seek for alternative
overseas fishing grounds, thus, the goodwill arising from the
acquisition of the Company’s subsidiaries were fully impaired.
Again, because of COVID-19, the Group had experienced delays
in settlement from its customers, the management had made
various request to urge for the settlement of the amounts due,
but because of the slow settlement from the customer, the
management has made impairment losses on the outstanding
balance as the yearend date based on the settlement pattern from
the customer.

was

Included in the total assets, there were advance payments to
suppliers amounting to HK$517.3 million (31 March 2020:
HK$626.6 million); as a trading practice, the suppliers usually
require the Group to place a deposit to secure the supply of aqua-
products. The amount of deposit were made in accordance with
the supply contracts with the supplier, however, with reduction
in trading volume, some of these deposits were applied to the
settlement of purchases to the suppliers. The Group has performed
an expected loss assessment to write down the advance payment
to suppliers to its fair value.
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Outlook

The Company’s supply chain management business has been
adversely affected by the continuity of the outbreak of COVID-19
during the Year, however, the Company will pay close attention
to its performance and future development. At the same time,
the management will continuously monitor and review the overall
operation and financial performance of the Group’s businesses
so as to cope with the ever-changing business environment. The
management will continue to proactively seek other promising
investment and business opportunities to broaden the source of
income of the Group and enhance value to the shareholders of the
Company through investment and/or acquiring business or projects
that have promising outlooks and prospects, and with the Group’s
management team having extensive experience in the marine
fishing business, the Group will also explore further opportunities
in the marine fishing business.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$1,544,594,000 (31 March 2020: approximately
HK$1,716,622,000), including bank balances and cash equivalent
of approximately HK$9,656,000 (31 March 2020: approximately
HK$2,924,000).

As at 31 March 2021, there was general banking facilities granted
to a subsidiary of the Group of RMB54,950,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB33,290,000) of which RMB54,950,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB33,290,000) was utilised. Excluding the above banking
facilities, during the Year, the Group financed its operation mainly
with its own working capital and proceeds from the issue of
placing/ subscription shares and borrowings.

As at 31 March 2021, the gearing ratio (defined as the ratio
between total bank borrowings and total assets) was approximately
4.24% (31 March 2020: 2.15%). The Group’s total bank
borrowings as at 31 March 2021 was HK$64,822,000 (31 March
2020: HK$36,989,000).

SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES

i) On 10 July 2020, the Company has completed the
subscription agreement Il with the subscriber Il (an
independent third parties), of 40,000,000 new shares,
(the”Subscription Share 11”) at HK$0.13 per Subscription
Share (the “Subscription I1"”). 40,000,000 Subscription
Shares was allotted and issued by the Company pursuant
to the subscription agreement. The gross proceeds from the
Subscription Il is HK$5.2 million and the net proceeds of
approximately HK$5.1 million from the Placing were utilized
as general working capital of the Group.

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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iii)

12

On 17 July 2020, the Company has completed the
subscription agreement | with the subscriber | (an
independent third party), of 40,000,000 new shares
(the”Subscription Share 1”) at HK$0.13 per Subscription
Share (the “Subscription 1”). 40,000,000 Subscription Shares
were allotted and issued by the Company pursuant to the
subscription agreement |. The gross proceeds from the
Subscription | is HK$5.2 million and the net proceeds of
approximately HK$5.1 million from the Placing were utilized
as general working capital of the Group.

On 20 October 2020, the Company has completed the
subscription agreement with the subscriber (an independent
third parties), of 50,000,000 new shares, (the”Subscription
Share”) at HK$0.10 per Subscription Share (the
“Subscription”). 50,000,000 Subscription Shares was allotted
and issued by the Company pursuant to the subscription
agreement. The gross proceeds from the Subscription is
HK$5.0 million and the net proceeds of approximately
HK$4.9 million from the Placing were utilized as general
working capital of the Group.

On 2 December 2020, the Company has completed
three subscription agreements with three subscribers
(all independent third parties), with an aggregate of
157,696,000 new shares, (the”Subscription Share”) at
HK$0.12 per Subscription Share (the”Subscription”).
157,696,000 Subscription Shares were allotted and issued by
the Company pursuant to the subscription agreements.

On 29 December 2020, the Company has completed
the subscription agreement with the subscriber (an
independent third parties), of 200,000,000 new shares,
(the”Subscription Share”) at HK$0.12 per Subscription
Share (the “Subscription”). 200,000,000 Subscription
Shares was allotted and issued by the Company pursuant
to the subscription agreement. The gross proceeds from the
Subscription is HK$24.0 million and the net proceeds from
the Placing of approximately HK$23.9 million were utilized as
general working capital of the Group.

iii)
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Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and related
hedges

Most of the transactions of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong Dollar (“HKD") and Renminbi (“"RMB"). The Group adopts a
conservative treasury policy with most of the bank deposits being
kept in HKD, or in the local currencies of the operating subsidiaries
to minimise exposure to foreign exchange risks. As at 31 March
2021, the Group had no foreign exchange contracts, interests or
currency swaps or other financial derivatives for hedging purposes.

Significant investment, material acquisitions and disposal of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant investments,
material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies during the Year.

Charge on group assets

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had no charge on assets (31
March 2020: pledge of certain leasehold land and building with
carrying amount of approximately HK$19.6 million) as collateral to
secure borrowings granted to the Group.

Contingent liabilities

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no contingent liability as at
31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: Nil).

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 61 (31 March 2020: 78)
employees including the Directors. Total staff costs (excluding
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$10.6
million for the Year, as compared to approximately HK$13.2 million
in 2020. Remuneration is determined by reference to market terms
and the performance, qualification and experience of individual
employee. Year-end bonus based on individual performance will
be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contributions. Other benefits include contributions to statutory
mandatory provident fund scheme to its employees in Hong Kong
and basic insurance for the elderly, basic medical insurance, work
injury insurance and unemployment insurance to its employees in
the PRC.
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Future plans for material investments or capital assets and
their expected sources of funding in the coming year

Save as disclosed in the “QOutlook” above, the Group has no future
plans for material investments or capital assets in the coming year.

Contractual arrangements

One of the business segments under development by the Group
is the marine fishing business which would be operated under the
contractual arrangement. This business was acquired by the Group
in December 2016. The following graph shows the structure of the
Group conducting this business as at 31 March 2021:

(0 i e L B Iy )

BEAREFEFEEZARRAEIRAEFARE 2
EERIR

FREX AR FAEEIN AEERFWEER
BRERBEAREEZRKETE -

BRRY
AEEERFBMBEBPLERENET —EE
BRI A AN LZHRE - RAEEN T —RF
tT-AKBZER - TEBRRBE_T—_—F=
A=t RAKEETZEBNRE:

A7

The Company

|100%

(BVI)

Super Heritage Limited

|100%

SRGEEMARAR (FH)
Golden Thai Marine
Products Group Limited (HK)

| 100%
TIN TR 5 A RAF
AR Z PN AR vt (HER)
Registered owners Shenzhen Yuheng Trade
Mr. Hong Maoji (100%) Management Co., Ltd
(PRC)
i
100% 1 100%
USRS

| (under contractual arrangement)

TRINTH e T 5 A RN 7]

()

Jin Yu Tang (Shenzhen)

Fishery Co., Ltd.

(PRC)
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Under this business, the operators are required to obtain the
license (i.e. Far Ocean Fishing Enterprise issued by the Agricultural
Department (B I EFRENLZE)) to conduct its business.
Jin Yu Tang is the operating subsidiary of the business holding
the License. If Shenzhen Yuheng Trade Management Co., Ltd
("Shenzhen Yuheng”) directly interested in the equity interest
in Jin Yu Tang, there will be a change in enterprise nature of
Jin Yu Tang and that the benefits and tax concessions from the
fishing operations that Jin Yu Tang is eligible to participate will be
restricted. Therefore the existing fishing operations that Jin Yu Tang
could undertake beyond the permitted scope mentioned above will
probably be affected.

Therefore in order to obtain the effective control on Jin Yu Tang
and the right to enjoy the economic benefits in the business and
assets of Jin Yu Tang, Shenzhen Yuheng has entered into a set
of control agreements (the “Control Agreements”) with Jin Yu
Tang and the existing shareholder which remains effective since
1 December 2016. The Control Agreements comprise (a) Loan
Agreement; (b) Share Charge Agreement; (c) Exclusive Purchase
Agreement; (d) Shareholder’s Power of Attorney Agreement; (e)
Cooperation Framework Agreement; (f) Technical Support Service
Agreement; and (g) Technical Research Service Agreement. Set out
below are the major terms and other relevant information of the
Control Agreements executed amongst Shenzhen Yuheng, Jin Yu
Tang and its respective shareholder and directors:

(a) Loan Agreement

Pursuant to the loan agreement executed on 1 December
2016 (the “Loan Agreement”), an interest free loan of
RMB15 million will be provided by Shenzhen Yuheng to
the existing shareholder of Jin Yu Tang, with no fixed
term of repayment. The loan is secured by a charge of the
shareholdings in Jin Yu Tang.

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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(b) Share Charge Agreement

(c)

16

Pursuant to the share charge executed on 1 December 2016
(the “Share Charge Agreement”), the existing shareholder of
Jin Yu Tang pledged his entire equity interests in Jin Yu Tang
to Shenzhen Yuheng, he will convey to Shenzhen Yuheng
all his interests in the dividend and distributions for securing
the repayment obligations of the shareholders of Jin Yu Tang
under the loan agreement.

Pursuant to the PRC rules, in the event that Jin Yu Tang goes
into liquidation, Shenzhen Yuheng as the beneficial owner of
the charged share interest has the priority in recovering the
repayment of the loan.

Exclusive Purchase Agreement

For the purposes of obtaining the rights to purchase all
(or part) of the equity interest and/or asset in Jin Yu Tang,
Shenzhen Yuheng entered into an exclusive purchase
agreement on 1 December 2016 (the "Exclusive Purchase
Agreement”) with the shareholder of Jin Yu Tang, pursuant
to which, an irrevocable and exclusive right was granted
by the shareholder to Shenzhen Yuheng (or its nominee) to
purchase all (or part) of the shareholders’ equity interest in
Jin Yu Tang. The consideration will be determined based on
the minimum amount of consideration as permissible under
the then PRC laws and regulations or, in case of equity
interest, the value of the registered capital.

Pursuant to the Exclusive Purchase Agreement, unless
with a prior written consent from Shenzhen Yuheng, the
shareholder of Jin Yu Tang would not vote in favour of
any resolutions in relation to any decision on the sale,
assignment, transfer or any other method of dealing with the
equity interest of Jin Yu Tang.

(b)

(c)
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(d)

(e)

Shareholder’s Power of Attorney Agreement

Pursuant to the shareholder’'s power of attorney agreement
executed on 1 December 2016 (the “Power of Attorney
Agreement”), Jin Yu Tang shall appoint the person(s)
nominated by Shenzhen Yuheng as directors to the board
of directors of Jin Yu Tang thereby creating an effective
control on the board of directors of Jin Yu Tang. In addition,
Shenzhen Yuheng has the right to remove directors, the
general manager and legal representatives of each of Jin Yu
Tang and replace them with its nominees as it thinks fit.

The shareholder of Jin Yu Tang undertook to Shenzhen
Yuheng that as the shareholder of Jin Yu Tang, he irrevocably
assigned his voting rights to Shenzhen Yuheng (or such
other person as directed by Shenzhen Yuheng) and to vote in
accordance with the directions of Shenzhen Yuheng on any
resolution proposed at a general meeting of the shareholder
of Jin Yu Tang.

In addition, Shenzhen Yuheng is authorised to exercise the
shareholders’ rights in Jin Yu Tang including exercise of voting
rights, rights to nominate directors of Jin Yu Tang, the rights
to sell or transfer all or any of their respective shareholding in
Jin Yu Tang.

Cooperative Framework Agreement

Pursuant to the exclusive cooperative framework agreement
executed on 1 December 2016 (the “Cooperative Framework
Agreement”), Shenzhen Yuheng will set up a management
committee with Jin Yu Tang, and both parties will occupy
two positions. Shenzhen Yuheng will provide technical
research and technical support services for deepwater aquatic
products to Jin Yu Tang, in return for service fees. The
proportion of service fees will eventually be determined by
the management committee in accordance with the agreed
terms of the Cooperative Framework Agreement. Shenzhen
Yuheng may, at its sole discretion, terminate Cooperative
Framework Agreement upon giving one month's written
notice in advance to Jin Yu Tang at any time.
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(9)

Technical Support Service Agreement

Pursuant to the technical support service agreement executed
on 1 December 2016 (the “Technical Support Service
Agreement”), Jin Yu Tang will receive technical support
services from Shenzhen Yuheng, which includes: business
system and management technology, business technology,
customer service technology, services permitted by PRC laws,
etc. Jin Yu Tang shall pay technical fee and any other costs
arising from technical fee on a monthly basis during the
terms of the Agreement. The fee is 100% of the monthly
income, and the total monthly fee should not exceed 100%
of the monthly income.

Technical Research Service Agreement

Pursuant to the technical research service agreement
executed on 1 December 2016 (the “Technical Research
Service Agreement”), Jin Yu Tang will obtain technological
research and development services from Shenzhen Yuheng
to assist Jin Yu Tang in developing the application software
required for the operation of fishing business, and will pay
monthly service fee to Shenzhen Yuheng. The service fee is
based on a certain proportion of the revenue from the service
of Jin Yu Tang.

In accordance with the terms of the Control Agreements,
Shenzhen Yuheng is able to govern the financial and operating
policies of Jin Yu Tang and Shenzhen Yuheng can enjoy all of the
economic benefits of Jin Yu Tang because:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the board of directors of Jin Yu Tang is controlled by
Shenzhen Yuheng pursuant to the shareholder’s Power of
Attorney Agreement;

the general meeting of Jin Yu Tang is controlled by Shenzhen
Yuheng pursuant to the shareholders’ Power of Attorney
Agreement; and

all the benefits arising from the entire equity interests in Jin
Yu Tang is entirely conveyed to Shenzhen Yuheng pursuant
to the Share Charge Agreement, Cooperative Framework
Agreement and Loan Agreement.

The Group believes that, notwithstanding the lack of equity
ownership, the Control Agreements give the Group control over Jin
Yu Tang in substance. Accordingly, Jin Yu Tang is accounted for as a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021, the business of marine fishing
is not yet commenced by Jin Yu Tang and it is principally engaged
in supply chain management services business.

Risk of the contractual arrangement

There is inherited risk of the contractual arrangement. The Group
has no equity ownership interest in Jin Yu Tang and it relies on
contractual arrangements to control and operate the business
of Jin Yu Tang under the Control Agreements. However such
contractual arrangements may not be as effective in providing
control over Jin Yu Tang as compared with direct ownership
since (i) there is no assurance that the Control Agreements could
comply with future changes in the regulatory requirements in
the PRC; (ii) these contractual arrangements will not preserve
Shenzhen Yuheng's control in the occurrence of certain events
which may be outside the control of Jin Yu Tang and its respective
shareholders; and (iii) potential conflicts of interest between the
Group and Jin Yu Tang and its respective shareholders exists and
whether the shareholders and directors of Jin Yu Tang will act
completely in the interest of the Group is outside the control of
the Group. Any of the above may materially and adversely affect
the validity, effectiveness and enforceability of the control of the
Group and Shenzhen Yuheng on Jin Yu Tang and its respective
shareholders. Any inability, or limitation on Shenzhen Yuheng’s
ability to enforce the contractual arrangements with the Jin Yu
Tang and its respective shareholders or to take any legal remedies
under the PRC law could disrupt the business and have a material
adverse effect on the financial position, results of operations and
prospects of this business. Whether such conflicts of interest could
be effectively managed or otherwise be resolved in the favour of
the Group and its subsidiaries will be crucial to the effectiveness
of contractual arrangements. In the event the disagreement and
dispute cannot be resolved under friendly negotiation and proceed
to arbitration, there is no guarantee that the final decision under
arbitration would be in favour of the Group.
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In order to mitigate the risk of the contractual arrangement, the A#ZMANTHER AEBEEN_T—KF
Group has since its acquisition of this business in December 2016  + = A UBE 2T ZE S B FREUA N - LARE(R
implemented the following measures to ensure the sound and &I EEE R A BUE(E:

effective operation of the Control Agreements:

- the Board has nominated its representatives to Shenzhen  —

Yuheng and Jin Yu Tang to ensure that there is a continuous
and effective control over Jin Yu Tang’'s operation and
management. The Group has also obtained the directors’
undertaking as detailed above;

- suitable management has been assigned to Jin Yu Tang —

to report regularly to the Board for review in relation to
major issues arising from implementation of the Control
Agreements;

- suitable reporting system in line with the Group’s financial ——

reporting practice in the PRC have also been in place to
ensure that the Group would have full access and control
over the book and record of Jin Yu Tang and to obtain
periodic financial information to ensure proper financial
record are kept;

- the proper record system for shareholders’ meeting and —

directors’ meeting of Jin Yu Tang has worked effectively
and will continue to be in place, and a copy of these notice
for meeting and resolution will also be passed to Shenzhen
Yuheng and the Group before and after the meeting to keep
the Group informed on all important development of Jin Yu
Tang; and

- the Group has worked closely and will continue to work — —

closely with the PRC legal advisors and the management of
the Jin Yu Tang on the update of rules and regulations of
the PRC to monitor the continue compliance of the rules and
regulations by Jin Yu Tang as to its conduct of business and
contractual arrangement.
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In the event if the PRC government further release the restriction  {}/ B BT 5 INE A BEITE TS ESBMiE
on far ocean fishing operation to be undertaken by foreign —2FHERS| NEB BB RITFEESHBZE T2
company, the Group will as soon as possible exercise the exclusive BREWEEFTEZ BEERELER A LZEE-

right under the Control Agreements to acquire the direct equity
interest in Jin Yu Tang and unwind the contractual structure.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Rongsheng, aged 59, is an executive Director, chairman,
the chief executive officer of the Company and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. He completed a professional programme
in International Economics and Trading from Beijing Training
University of Economics and Technology* (b &3 &5 = i ift1& &
Bt ), the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1998. He also
holds a qualification as a senior economist in the PRC. Mr. Liu has
over 25 years of experience in import and export trading, logistics,
corporate strategic management, project management and finance
business.

Mr. Fan Guocheng, aged 54, is an executive Director. He
graduated from Beijing Foreign Studies University with a major
in professional accounting in July 2019 and graduated from
Guangzhou Financial Higher Special School (currently known as
Guangdong University of Finance and Economics) in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1988. He is an accountant and
holds an accounting qualification certificate issued by Shenzhen
Finance Bureau. Mr. Fan has accumulated nearly 30 years of
extensive experience in financial management and has held various
positions relating to financial management, accounting and
financial accounting in many different industries in Shenzhen.

Ms. Wei Qing, aged 37, is an executive Director. She completed a
professional programme in Law from Shenzhen University in 2010,
Ms. Wei worked in J&IITT7K# B, the Shenzhen Water Authority*,
from 2010 to 2013 and also acted as a vice chairman of Shenzhen
Hydraulic Engineering Society in 2013 and was responsible for
its day-to-day administration work. In September 2013, Ms.
Wei established three trading companies which are principally
engaged in import and export trading and retail services, such as
electronic products, wines from Europe and the United States, and
health care and cosmetics products from Japan. She has extensive
management experience.
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NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lui Chun Pong, aged 52, is a non-executive Director. He
obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Hong
Kong, a Master of Laws degree from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong, a Master of Accountancy degree from Charles
Sturt University in Australia and an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from the City University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Lui is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, an associate member of the Taxation Institute of
the Hong Kong and a Certified Tax Advisor in Hong Kong. He is
also an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr. Lui held senior positions at a number of Hong
Kong companies listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lui was an executive director of Hsin
Chong Group Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and delisted 31 December 2019), from September
2015 to December 2016 and was redesignated to non-executive
director from January 2017 to November 2018. Mr. Lui has over
29 years of experience in financing and accounting, fund raising,
mergers and acquisitions, company flotations, and real estate
business development. Mr. Lui also serves the community through
his participation in promoting sports and youth and student’ affairs
in Hong Kong. Mr. Lui was a baseball coach and was appointed as
a team secretary and a deputy delegate leader of the Hong Kong
Women's Baseball Team during the Women’s Baseball World Cup
in 2006 and in 2014. In respect of public services rendered to
youth and students’ affairs, Mr. Lui is a leader of various leadership
mentoring programs in Hong Kong United Youth Association,
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and Hong Kong
Professionals and Senior Executives Association. Mr. Lui was a
director of Hong Kong United Youth Association in 2014/2015
and a member of the Budget Proposal 2017-18 Subcommittee
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Lui is currently a member of the Hong Kong Student Affairs Sub-
committee of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Cai Haiming, aged 34, is a non-executive Director. He
graduated from Guangdong University of Finance, Department
of Finance. He is currently the chairman of Shenzhen Mingren
Holdings Group Co., Ltd.* ORIITEA{CIZREEBRAF) since
2017 Mr. Cai has over six years’ experience in financial investment,
resource integration and capital operations. He was a Corporate
Manager at two China joint-stock banks in Shenzhen from 2012 to
2015.
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INDEPENDENT NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John, aged 48, is an independent
non-executive Director, chairman of each of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee. He is a member of Standing Committee of National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Shenzhen Futian District (& B A REBOA W
e FYIMEAEEZ), Shenzhen and an expert juror of the
First batch of Hong Kong Expert Jurors of Qianhai Court. Mr.
Kam holds the degree of Master of Business Administration from
PBC School of Finance of Tsinghua University in China, Master
of Business Administration from The University of Manchester in
the United Kingdom. He is a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kam has
over 20 years’ experience in corporate, personal and interbank
business. Mr. Kam has been the co-CEO of DTXS Silk Road
Investment Holdings Co. Ltd. since March, 2021. He was the
Senior Partner of Shenzhen Zhujin Supply Chain Management Co.
Ltd. from November 2018 to February 2021. He was appointed
as an Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of Century
Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited from 2 May 2017 to October
2018 and was Zone Manager — Corporate Banking Division and
General Manager of Shenzhen Branch of The Bank of East Asia
(China), Limited from July 2012 to March 2017 and Zone Manager
(Western China) — Corporate Banking Division and General
Manager of Xi’an Branch of The Bank of East Asia (China), Limited
from November 2006 to June 2012.

Mr. Lam Man Hing, aged 52, is an independent non-executive
Director and member of the Audit Committee. He obtained a
master’s degree in business management from Jinan University. He
is currently the chairman of Hong Kong Industrial & Commercial
Association Limited; the managing director of #TZErg 7 BIFE (5
f%) &£ B AR A A Xinhua Nanfang International (Holding) Co.,
Ltd.*; the honorary president of Chongqging Chaozhou Overseas
Friendship Association; the honorary president of Chongqing
Chaoshan Chamber of Commerce and a standing director of
Happy Hong Kong Foundation. He has extensive management
experience.

Biographies of Directors and Company Secretary (Continued)
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Mr. Li Cao, aged 34, is an independent non-executive Director
and member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. He graduated from China
Youth University of Political Studies with a bachelor's degree in
international trade and is currently studying at the Graduate School
of Renmin University of China. Mr. Li has been employed in a
managerial capacity at various corporations in the PRC since 2009,
and has considerable management experience. He is currently
the office director of Shenzhen City Technology and Innovative
Enterprises Service Centre* (RIUITMRIAIREHH L), and
the chief secretary of each of the Shenzhen Ocean Society and
Shenzhen Ocean Industry Association.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Chi Ming, Francis, aged 62, has over 30 years of
experience in the field of financial and general management. Mr.
Lam is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Lam obtained a Bachelor's degree of Arts in
Economics and Social Studies from the University of Manchester.
Mr. Lam was the company secretary and/or financial controller of
several companies of which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
since October 1991 and had extensive working experience in an
international accounting firm.

* for identification purposes only
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The Directors of the Company hereby present the annual report
and the audited financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 43
to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results by
reporting segments and geographical areas of operations for the
Year is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in this annual report on pages
66 and 67.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) did not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year and
the material factors underlying its financial performance and
financial position can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages
6 to 8 and pages 9 to 20 respectively. Details of the Company’s
share option scheme are provided in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statement. An analysis of the Group’s financial risk
management objectives and policies is provided in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements. An indication of likely future
development in the Company’s business is set out on page 10 of
the “Management Discussion and Analysis”. No important event
affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the Year.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published result of the Group
for each of the last five financial years and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group as at 31 March 2021,
2020, 2019, 2018 and 2017.

Consolidated results

MBERBE

BE RERFERERME-

mEER

Year ended 31 March

UWTAREERIAENBRFEFESF 2B HIEE
ERAREBR T —_—F —_E-_FTF - TN
F _E-N\ERE—+FR=ZA=1+—HH

BE-A=t-HLEE

(In HK$'000) 2020 2019 2018 2017
(LB FrAEN) “Z-%F T-NE —E-)\fF Z—E—LF
Continuing operation BFESEXH
Revenue e 621,723 826,513 960,595 1,294,944 121,667
(Loss)/profit before taxation from SR ERBRHA (377,705) 35,640 47,079 74.434 (82,862)

continuing operation whl/ (B8)
Income tax expenses FEREY (2,563) (3,216) (503) (15,151) (1,466)
Discontinued operations DRILER
(Loss)/profit for the year from

discontinued operations BRIFEBERER,/ (FE) 556 - - - 17,129
(Loss)/profit for the year FERA (FE) (379,712) 32,424 46,576 59,283 (67,199)
Attributable to; ATALE:

Equity holders of the Company AREIREREA (377,799) 28,029 43,668 57,054 (67,199)

Non-controlling interests FERER (1,913) (1,270) 2,908 2,229 -

(379,712) 26,759 46,576 59,283 (67,199)
Consolidated assets and liabilities and non-controlling SEEENREBERIEERER
interests
As at 31 March
R=BA=+-H
(In HK$'000) 2019 2018 2017
(LB FrAEN) T-NE  ZE-)\F ZE—tF
Total assets BEE 1,544,594 1,716,622 1,693,051 1,299,849 326,143
Total liabilities waE (474,795) (439,420) (400,924) (360,731) (50,500)
Non-controlling interests R ER 56,791 (58,704) (59,974) (46,367) -
1,126,590 1,218,498 1,232,153 892,751 275,643
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Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to achieving environmental sustainability.
The Group’s commitment to protect the environment is well
reflected by the continuous efforts in promoting green measures
and awareness in our daily business operations. The Group's
business is subject to national, provincial and local environmental
laws and regulations of the PRC. During the Year, so far as the
Directors are aware, there were no material breach of applicable
environmental laws and regulations of the PRC that have a
significant adverse impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

The Group also encourages environmental protection and promote
awareness towards environmental protection to the employees.
The Group adheres to the principle of recycling and reducing. It
implements green office practices such as double-sided printing
and copying, setting up recycling bins, promoting using recycled
paper and reducing energy consumption by switching off idle
lightings and electrical appliance.

The Group endeavours to comply with the relevant laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection and adopt effective
measures to achieve efficient use of resources, waste reduction
and energy saving. The Group will review its environmental
practices from time to time and will consider implementing
further eco-friendly measures and practices in the operation of
the Group’s businesses to move towards enhancing environmental
sustainability.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with
such requirements could lead to the suspension or termination of
operating licences. The Group has been allocating system and staff
resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and regulations
and to maintain cordial working relationships with regulators
effectively through effective communications. For the Year, the
Group has complied, to the best of the directors’ knowledge, with
all relevant rules and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Company.

Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures all staff are reasonable
remunerated and also continues to improve and regularly review
and update its policies on remuneration and benefits, training,
occupational health and safety.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. A
customer complaint handling mechanism is in place to receive,
analyse and study complaints and make recommendations on
remedies with the aim of improving service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a
fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual basis.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the
Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those shown below which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or affects ability
to meet business objectives arising from the movement in market
prices. The management of the Group manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or from external
events.

Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with
every function at divisional and departmental levels. Key functions
in the Group are guided by their standard operating procedures,
limits of authority and reporting framework. The management
will identify and assess key operational exposures regularly so that
appropriate risk response can be taken.
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Investment Risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of occurrence of
losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment.
Key concern of investment framework will be balancing risk and
return across different investments, and thus risk assessment
is a core aspect of the investment decision process. Proper
authorisation system has been set up and detailed analysis will
be made before approving investments. Regular updates on the
progress of the investments of the Group would be submitted to
the Board.

Manpower and Retention Risk

The Group may face the risk of not being able to attract and
retain key personnel and talents with appropriate and required
skills, experience and competence which would meet the business
objectives of the Group. The Group will provide attractive
remuneration package to suitable candidates and personnel.

Financial Risk

The Group’s also faces financial risks including interest rate risk,
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Details of these
financial risks are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details (including the principal activities) of the Company’s
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2021 are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital are set
out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” and “Convertible Bonds “, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into during the Year or subsisted at the end of the
Year.

Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in Management Discussion and Analysis, the
Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and investments during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the existing
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Except for subscription of new shares disclosed in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Company did not
redeem any of its listed shares, nor did the Company or any of its
subsidiaries purchase or sell any such shares during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 70 to 72 of the annual report and in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of movements in the convertible bonds of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statement.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2021, no reserves of the Company were available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie (2020: Nil),
as computed in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda. In addition, the Company’s share premium account had a
balance of approximately HK$1,465,879,000 as at 31 March 2021
(2020: approximately HK$1,378,822,000).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 99% (2020: 99% of the total revenue for
the Year. Revenue attributable to the largest customer accounted
for 74% (2020: 57%) of the total revenue for the Year.

During the Year, purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for 99% (2020: 94%) of the total purchases for the
Year. Purchases from the Group’s largest supplier or accounted for
48% (2020: 71%) of the total purchases for the Year.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors or any
of their close associates nor any Shareholders which, to the best
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interests in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Rongsheng
(executive Director, Chairman and chief executive officer)
Mr. Fan Guocheng
Ms. Wei Qing

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lui Chun Pong
Mr. Cai Haiming
Mr. Yang Yong (resigned on 23 April 2020)
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Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Man Hing
Mr. Li Cao
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John

In accordance with bye-laws 84(1) and (2) of the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”), Mr. Liu Rongsheng, Mr. Fan Guocheng
and Mr. Li Cao will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM"). All the
above retiring Directors, being eligible, have offered themselves for
re-election thereat.

The Company confirmed that it has received from each of
its independent non-executive Directors the annual written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and considered them to be independent as at
the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND COMPANY SECRETARY’S
BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the Directors and Company Secretary of
the Group are set out on pages 21 to 24 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive directors and the
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of one to three years
commencing from the date of appointment and will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less than one
month’s notice in writing to the other party.

Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company, which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Details of the transactions during the Year between the Group and
connected persons (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) in which a
Director has beneficial interest are set out in the section “Related
Party Transactions” of this report and note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year, nor was there
any transaction, arrangements or contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by
a controlling shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or
any of its subsidiaries for the Year. There was also no contract of
significance between the Company or one of the subsidiaries and
the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except otherwise disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no transactions incurred during the
Year which need to be disclosed as connected transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT
No contracts concerning the management and administration of

the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five individuals

with the highest emoluments for the Year are set out in notes 8
and 9 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option scheme is set out note 31 to
the consolidated financial statement.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Scheme since its adoption.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
have been in force to protect the directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure arising from the business of the
Group.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses, which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason
of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duty.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any taxation relief available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

CHANGES IN DIRECTOR'S INFORMATION

The changes in Directors’ information are set out below:

Name of Director

EEpS

Details of changes

BEFE

Mr. Yang Yong -
BELE -

RS E

ARBBIAET B Z FBENEE
31-°
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SEAA]

EEEHEE
EEEMBENT:

Resigned as non-executive Director on 23 April 2020
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Future Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong (the “SFO")) which have been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO
(including interest or short positions which they had taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to the securities transactions by directors were as
follows:

Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Long position in the Shares Bz FE
Approximate
Number percentage of
of ordinary issued share
Name of Director Capacity Shares held capital
HEBTRE
BEEnsA 287) KFEEBRREAR BAEH
Ms. Wei Qing (Note 1) Beneficial owner 79,608,000 1.62%
RS 22+ (Mfat1) EnEAA 79,608,000 1.62%
Mr. Fan Guocheng Beneficial owner 800,000 0.02%
SBEIM S A BERERA 800,000 0.02%
Mr. Cai Haiming Beneficial owner 151,404,857 3.08%
BB ESE EnEAA 151,404,857 3.08%

Notes: Bfat -

(1) Ms. Wei Qing is beneficial interested in 67,852,000 shares through
Sunny Sky Capital Management Limited.

() BBEZEIEBRREAEEERAFAEDESR
67,852,000 % 17 °
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were required: (a) to be
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the securities transactions by
directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under paragraphs headed “Directors and Chief
Executive’s Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”
and “Share Option Scheme” above, at no time during the Year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or of any other body
corporate granted to any Directors or their respective spouses or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors, their respective spouses or children under 18
years of age to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of persons
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who was, directly or
indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of the Company, or substantial shareholders
as recorded in the register of substantial shareholders required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:
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Long position in the Shares

Name of shareholder Capacity
RREEEBEH g4

Liu Yi Beneficial owner
£ ES EnEAA

Report of the Directors (Continued)
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R z2HR
Approximate
Number percentage of
of ordinary issued share
Shares held capital
HEBTRA
BEEZBEREAE BAE D
724,292,000 14.74%
724,292,000 14.74%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, so far as is known
to any Directors, none of any persons had an interest or short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO or, who was directly or indirectly, interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings
of any other members of the Group, or any other substantial
shareholders whose interests or short positions were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of the
substantial shareholders, as at 31 March 2021, no other person
is individually and/or collectively entitled to exercise or control
the exercise of 5% or more of the voting power at the general
meetings of the Company and are able, as a practicable manner, to
direct or influence the management of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, there is a sufficient public float of the issued Shares (i.e. at
least 25% the issued Shares being held by the public) as required
under the GEM Listing Rules throughout the Year and thereafter up
to the date of this report.
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CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

On 30 December 2019, the Board proposed to change the English
name of the Company from “China Ocean Fishing Holdings
Limited” to “China Ocean Group Development Limited” and
adopt the Chinese name "HEIFSBE R BRAF" as the
secondary name of the Company to replace its existing secondary
name in Chinese "R EGFMEIEREBR QA" A special
resolution has been passed by the shareholders of the Company
at the special general meeting of the Company on 30 January
2020. A Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name was
issued by the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda on 23 April
2020 and a Certificate of Registration of Alternation of Name of
Registered Non-Hong Kong Company was issued by the Registrar
of Companies in Hong Kong on 12 May 2020. An announcement
was made on 26 May 2020 for the Change of Company Name.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the Group during
the Year (2020: Nil).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year under review and up to the date of this report,
none of the Directors or the controlling shareholders or substantial
shareholders or their respective close associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) of the Company had an interest in a business
which competed with or might compete with the business of the
Group

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out on page 40 to page 54 of this annual
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company sets up an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
on 18 October 2001, with written terms of reference in compliance
with the GEM Listing Rules, for the purpose of reviewing and
providing supervision over the financial reporting process and
internal control of the Group. The Audit Committee presently
comprised the three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John as the chairman of the Audit
Committee, Mr. Lam Man Hing and Mr. Li Cao. During the Year,
the Audit Committee held four meetings to review and supervise
the financial reporting process, and to provide advice and
recommendations to the Board.

The financial statements of the Group for the Year have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which is of the opinion that
such statements comply with the applicable accounting standards,
as well as the Stock Exchange’s and legal requirements, and that
adequate disclosures have been made.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had no material event subsequent to the end of
reporting period and up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited, who will
retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM.

Having been approved by the Board upon the Audit Committee’s
recommendation, a resolution to re-appoint Reanda Lau &
Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited as the auditor and to authorise
the Directors to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

Save as disclosed above, there have been no change of the
independent auditors for the preceding three years.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Liu Rongsheng

Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021

Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEHS (&)

BREHRER
AEERBERRRRBEAREARABEE X
SRR

% BLED
AERZHFEVBRREANLEZEE (F8)
S EBAARATER HASRE B4
ERIRAENEERREFASBEET

RECZZBGHEN %“ﬁ%@ﬁt/ﬁ A FEJE B R

BFEASHRZEBENZEIKG (F8) Gt
RS 75 PR PR A A AR BRAD I 1% 25 5 728 T AL B
%E’J/kuﬁzm

R EXXPTHREE & SN 8 A = F 8 L BUAm T AR
@JO

RREFZ

BleAE

HITEF TERERENTE

BB T -—FXA-+ANH

HESFEEZRERDT 2020-2021F#®H 39



Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules throughout the Year. The Company has applied the principles
in the CG Code and complied with the code provisions set out in
the CG Code for the Year, save and except for the following:

In accordance with the CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established and set out in writing. The roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer of the Company are performed by Mr.
Liu Rongsheng. The Board considers that the present structure
is more suitable for the Company for it provides strong and
consistent leadership in the planning and execution of long-term
business plans and strategies of the Company. The Directors will
continue to review the effectiveness of the Group's corporate
governance structure to assess whether changes, including the
separation of the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer,
as and when necessary.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made a specific enquiry with all the Directors,
each of them confirmed that he/she had complied with such
code of conduct and the required standard of dealings regarding
securities transactions throughout the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETINGS

The Board is responsible for the Group’s corporate policy
formulation, business strategies planning, business development,
risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and capital
transactions, and other significant operational and financial
matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated
by the Board to the management include the preparation of
annual, interim and quarterly financial statements for the Board’s
approval before public reporting, execution of business strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk man agement procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules
and regulations. During the Year and up to date of this report, the
Board comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Rongsheng

(executive Director, Chairman and chief executive officer)
Mr. Fan Guocheng
Ms. Wei Qing

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lui Chun Pong
Mr. Cai Haiming
Mr. Yang Yong (resigned on 23 April 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Man Hing
Mr. Li Cao
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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The Directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 21 to
24 of this annual report. All Directors have given sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Group. Each executive Director
has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to carry out
his/her duties effectively and efficiently. Save as disclosed above,
there is no financial, business, family or other material relationship
among the members of the Board.

The Company appointed three independent non-executive
Directors who have appropriate and sufficient experience and
qualifications to carry out their duties so as to protect the interests
of Shareholders. Each of them has been appointed for a term of
three years commencing on the date of appointment, which will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving the
other not less than one month's notice. Every Director should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and is eligible for re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has received written confirmation from each independent non-
executive Director of his/her independence. Based on such
confirmations of independence, the Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Apart from the regular Board meetings, the Board meets on other
occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter is

required.

During the Year, 6 Board meetings and an AGM were held.

EEEEABEANAFRENE24E-FTEESF
ERAEEEBNERRRB RO - BEHIT
EENAEFEBMUMTRALE UEMRITR
BB EXMREEIN EEEXNBZHIL
BYH X% KGR EMERRE-

ARBEEZE=BBUIFATES REFHEEA
HBALFAHREE RRANERRERARERR
Bm SBUFNTEFHEZITAZEZAE
AR YKREREE BEEEM—TTH
BHBENTIOR—BAZBNSLE -BREEH
ARBARMANEZELBE=FHERT X LAE
& RET-

R IEGEM T 43 A 555.091% - A2 &) 2 W B &AL
BMYFATEEHEBLEMBE L 2 EEER -
AR EBERER K ARRRBRABBILIE
WITEEHBBEIAL

HEMEFSERN EFERNHEEEFEE

BRERBITERE

RAFE  CRTOREFTEERHL —RBRRAF
AN

42 China Ocean Group Development Limited Annual Report 2020-2021



Details of the attendance of the meetings of the Board members

during the Year are as follows:

Name of Directors

Expd

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Rongsheng
(executive Director, Chairman and chief executive
officer)

Mr. Fan Guocheng

Ms. Wei Qing

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lui Chun Pong
Mr. Cai Haiming
Mr. Yang Yong
(resigned on 23 April 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lam Man Hing

Mr. Li Cao

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION A ND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Each newly
appointed Director would have comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction upon appointment, so as to ensure that appropriate
understanding of the Company’s business and operations and be
fully aware of the responsibilities and obligations under the GEM
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. The Directors
are continually updated on the legal and regulatory developments,
as well as business and market changes, to facilitate the discharge
of their responsibilities. All Directors during the reporting period
have participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills through suitable
trainings. The participation in such trainings is to ensure that their
contributions to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board values diversity as a factor in selecting candidates to
serve on the Board, and believes that the diversity which exists in
its composition provides significant benefits to the Board and the
Company.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which relates to the selection of candidates for the Board.
The Board believes that a key success factor of an effective Board
is that it comprises a range and balance of skills, experience,
knowledge and independence, with individuals that work as
a team. The Board Diversity Policy was adopted to ensure that
diversity in its broadest sense continues to remain a feature of the
Board.

The Nomination Committee has been delegated with the
responsibilities for the review of the Board Diversity Policy on an
annual basis.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In accordance with the CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual to ensure balance
of power and authority. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set
out in writing. The roles of the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company are performed by Mr. Liu Rongsheng. The
Board considers that the present structure is more suitable for the
Company for it provides strong and consistent leadership in the
planning and execution of long-term business plans and strategies
of the Company.

The Directors will continue to review the effectiveness of the
Group's corporate governance structure to assess whether
changes, including the separation of the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer, as and when necessary.
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TEERBE (&)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:

a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

¢)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and
the Directors; and

e)  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’'s affairs. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each of the Board committees
named above are in line with the GEM Listing Rules and are
posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in January 2006
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee presently comprises two members,
all being independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kam
Hou Yin, John, serving as the chairman and Mr. Li Cao.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board for its final determination on the
specific remuneration packages of all Directors, including benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the Year
to review the remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management. Details of the attendance of the Remuneration
Committee meetings are as follows:

Members

RE

Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (chairman) e EBELE
Mr. Li Cao TRREE
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the senior

management of the Company for the Year are set out in notes 8
and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision of B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual

remuneration of the senior management (other than the Directors)
for the Year by band is set out below:

Remuneration bands (in HK$)

Nil to 1,000,000
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 23 March
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. The Nomination Committee presently comprises three
members, namely Mr. Liu Rongsheng, an executive Director, serving
as the chairman, and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Kam Hou Yin, John and Mr. Li Cao.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of the Directors
and succession planning for the Directors. The Board takes into
consideration criteria such as the expertise and experience of the
relevant candidates, the market situation and applicable laws and
regulations when considering new director appointments.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the Year to
review the structure and composition of the Board as well as
the Board Diversity Policy and made recommendations on the
appointment and re-appointment of retiring Directors. Details of
the attendance of the Nomination Committee meetings are as
follows:
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Number of

meetings

attended/

Eligible to

Members attend
Bk

SEERERE

24 ZEE¥E
Mr. Liu Rongsheng (chairman) RUEERE (FE) 1/1
Mr. Li Cao TRESE 11
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John SEBLRE 1/1

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
on 18 October 2001, with written terms of reference in compliance
with the GEM Listing Rules, for the purpose of reviewing and
providing supervision over the financial reporting process and
internal control of the Group. The Audit Committee presently
comprised the three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John as the chairman of the Audit Committee,
Mr. Lam Man Hing and Mr. Li Cao. During the Year, the Audit
Committee held six meetings to review and supervise the financial
reporting process, and to provide advice and recommendations to
the Board.

The financial statements of the Group for the Year have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which is of the opinion that
such statements comply with the applicable accounting standards,
as well as the Stock Exchange’s and legal requirements, and that
adequate disclosures have been made.
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Number of

meetings

attended/

Eligible to

Members attend
Bk

cERERE

24 ZEEYE
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John (chairman) CEBEE(FE) 6/6
Mr. Lam Man Hing M ERAE 5/6
Mr. Li Cao RS 6/6

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the first and
third quarterly results and interim results for the Year, the annual
results of the Group for the Year and the accounting principles and
practice adopted by the Group and recommended to the Board
for considering the re-appointment of independent auditor at the
2020 AGM.

The annual results for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee at its meeting held on 29 June 2021 before submission
to the Board for approval. The members of the Audit Committee
considered that the results were prepared in accordance with
applicable accounting standards and the GEM Listing Rules and
sufficient disclosure had been made.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

It is the external auditor’s responsibility to form an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on the consolidated financial
statements and to report their opinion solely to the Shareholders,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act and for no other purpose. They do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
content of the auditor’s report.

During the year, the fees charged by the Company’s auditors,
Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited for the statutory audit
and non-audit assignments of the Group for the year amounted to
approximately HK$1,150,000 and Nil respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Chi Ming Francis is the company secretary of the
Company. During the year, Mr. Lam has duly complied with
relevant professional training requirements in accordance with Rule
5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining the Group’s internal
controls and risk management for reviewing the effectiveness of
these controls annually. Internal control systems are designed to
meet the particular needs of the Group and the risk to which it is
exposed.

In consideration of the size of the Group, the Board does not
consider to establish an internal audit team at present. However,
the key control procedures established by the Group are day-to-day
supervision of the business by the executive Directors, supported
by the managers responsible for the operation and the key division
support functions of finance, information system and human
resources. The key elements of internal controls described below
have been in place throughout the Year:

- procedures for the approval of capital expenditure and
payments;

- regular financial information provided to management for
reviewing the Group’s performance;

- clearly defined management structure and lines of
responsibility.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Under the Bye-laws, Shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a SGM to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. Within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board should proceed to convene such meeting.
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Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company or put
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board. The contact
details are as follows:

The Company Secretary
China Ocean Group Development Limited

Address: Room 03, 22/F, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Fax No.: 852-3956 4882

To put forward proposals at an AGM or a SGM, the Shareholders
shall submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed
contact information to the Company Secretary at the above
address.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong and upon its confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to include the proposed resolution in the agenda for the general
meeting.

PROCEDURE FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO SEND ENQUIRES
TO THE BOARD

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone hotline, fax number, email address and postal
address, in order to enable them to make any query that they
may have with respect to the Company. They can also send their
enquiries to the Board through these means. The contact details
of the Company are provided in this report, the “Corporate
Information” section of this annual report and the Company’s
website.

The Board welcomes views of Shareholders and encourages them
to attend general meetings to raise any concerns that they may
have with the Board or the management directly. Board members
and appropriate senior staff of the Group are available at the
meetings to answer any questions raised by Shareholders.

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXERERE ()

BRAMARBEXEAB R ARNEFSRL
EAEASEZE - BREHAT

NEWE
hEBFEEERAR AT

ok EB BB EE265
H#EBHANE22E03E
BEERN: 852-3956 4882

BERIMARNBERBFE RSB RFHAS LIRS
EE EH REBRIEMBNERFABRKE

R AR

FHx asmyt  EAB AR MER Y-

AR AR AN ERRN B ERHREE 10
REAABELERE ADUERE I U
BERRREREEMABRRAS ZHRE

BREROESSRIEANER

ARBABCRBEARABKER PIMERR
AR EERE B R BT A ASRRAT
EHEARRB A ZEMNER - BRI AIEBZ
ENAMEESELERN AR ZBB/BEHR
AE AFRIARER] —BHRAREHILR
e

EESEORRREER  USBRREERR
AEEERNESENEEERDEMEBAE A&
BE=EERENAELRABEBNE LEIZEK
RIBH Z A5 -

PEVSFEERREBRAT  2020-2021F 3K 53



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEEREE (&)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group for the Year. In preparing
the financial statements, the generally accepted accounting
standards in Hong Kong have been adopted, appropriate
accounting policies have been used and applied consistently, and
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates have been made.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt over the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Board has continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing Shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public. Enquires to the Board or the Company
may be sent by post to the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, there were no changes in the Company’s
Memorandum of Association and the Bye-laws except the change
of Company’s name.
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. REANDA

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited
FIRELERIR(FE)EREEHABRAR

To the shareholders of
China Ocean Group Development Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Ocean Group Development Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 65 to 184, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Company and the Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RS

21/F, Tai Yau Building,
181 Johnston Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
) A
HTHIE1815
REXE2112

5
EEEEEREARA
(RESER WA T2 ERAR)
Sl AR

=z
=

A B (AT HRM D EEFTREF&H
BERARAGLEMBARUATSREIESE])
FIENEESE184AA MR A M BME  BEN_F
“—F=ZA=t—"BNEEMBRAEREK BE
ZHEFENGEEEENRGER RAEGZEHR
MFEERERER  URERA M B RRM T Eb
BRIBZETBRME-

BHRR GAVBRRECREZEGSTNAE
(TEESEAE ) BMECEBM B RS ER)D
(IEEMBHREEMDEEMTEHRRT &
SER-_ZE_—F=R=1+—HNONGEEMBIKLR
MEBEZALFENGEMBRARGARE
mE WEERBB(RRKRIDNIEZREZS
it o

RRNER
BHERETESHHASHMA(EEEE
A1) ([FBFAEA ] ETERT  RAEZSTE
AT AN ETCHERRSE [ BB FA M
BRZAFENERE ] B FIEE— R - RIEE
AR ASEMACEXSFTEER TR (A
THEMEIFA]) HMBLR BEEE AEETT
BEBRERARTATHEMBEREREL

BAAE BRAMESHEBRETRLEE
WwREMNET S REHER-

PEEFEBERERAE  2020-2021F 55



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BUZEEMHE (F)

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a loss
attributable to equity holders of the company of approximately
HK$377,799,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021, and as
operating cash outflows of approximately HK$84,503,000. As
stated in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, these
conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

o Recoverability of trade and loan receivables

o Impairment assessment of goodwill
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYBREMHE (&)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Recoverability of trade and loans receivables

Refer to notes 21 and 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had trade and loans
receivables of HK$461 million and HK$22 million
respectively. Provision is made for expected credit losses
on trade and loans receivables.

Trade receivables of the Group comprise mainly
receivables for supply chain management services
business and ocean fishing business. Loans receivables of
the Group comprise mainly receivables for other loan and
loan to non-controlling shareholder.

Management applied judgement in assessing the
expected credit losses. Receivables relating to customers
with known financial difficulties or significant doubt
on collection of receivables are assessed individually for
provision for impairment allowance. Expected credit
losses are also estimated by grouping the remaining
receivables based on shared credit risk characteristics and
collectively assessed for likelihood of recovery, taking
into account the nature of the customer, its geographical
location and its ageing category, and applying expected
credit loss rates to the respective gross carrying amounts
of the receivables. The expected credit loss rates are
determined based on historical credit losses experience
and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
trade and loans receivables and the estimation and
judgement involved in determining the expected credit
losses allowance of the trade and loan receivables.

Our audit procedures in relation to the recoverability of
trade and loans receivables include:

o Verified the balances of trade and loans receivables
by requesting and receiving confirmations on a
sample basis;

o Tested aging of trade and loans receivable balances
at year end on a sample basis;

o Obtained a list of long outstanding receivables
and identified any debtors with financial difficulty
through discussion with management;

o Assessed the recoverability of these outstanding
receivables through our discussion with management
and latest correspondence with customers;

o Assessed the recoverability of the balances by
comparing the outstanding amounts as at year end
against subsequent settlements; and

o Obtained management’s assessment on the
expected credit losses allowance of receivables.
We corroborated and validated management’s
assessment based on the historical settlement
pattern, correspondence with the customers,
evidence from external sources including the
relevant public search results relating to the financial
circumstances of the relevant customers and relevant
forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors used in management’s assessment.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BUZEEMHE (F)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYBREMHE (&)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Refer to notes 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The cost of the Group’s goodwill as at 31 March 2021
was amounted to HK$117 million.

Management performed an annual impairment
assessment of its goodwill. Management compared the
carrying values of the cash-generating unit ("CGU")
to which the goodwill has been allocated against a
discounted cashflow forecast to determine the amount of
impairment loss which should be recognised, if any.

The preparation of a discounted cashflow forecast
involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, particularly in estimating the long term
revenue growth rate and the discount rate applied.

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill as
a key audit matter because the impairment assessments
prepared by management were complex and contained
judgemental assumptions, particularly the long term
revenue growth rate and discount rate applied, which
could be subject to management bias in their selection.

Based on management’s assessment, an impairment
provision of HK$117 million for goodwill were made as at
31 March 2021.

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of goodwill included:

o Evaluated the Group’s identification of CGU and the
value of goodwill allocated to the CGU and assessed
the methodology applied by management in the
preparation of the discounted cashflow forecast
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

o Evaluated the discounted cashflow forecast prepared
by management by comparing specific data and
significant assumptions in the preparation of
discounted cashflow forecast. Our evaluation has
taken into account our understanding of the Group's
future business plans;

o Compared the discount rate adopted in the
discounted cashflow forecast with that of
comparable companies and external market data;
and

o Obtained from management the sensitivity analysis
of long term revenue growth rate and the discount
rate adopted in the discounted cashflow forecast
and assessed the impact of changes in these key
assumptions to the conclusions reached in the
impairment assessment and whether there were any
indicators of management bias.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BUZEEMHE (F)
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
in the Group’s 2021 annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITY OF DIRECTORS’ AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BUZEEMHE (F)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BUZEEMHE (F)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Tsang Cheuk Bun

Practising Certificate Number P07122

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
RETEWER

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-ZE - F=-A=1+—HILEE

2021 2020
—B-—F —TE_TF
Note HK$000 HK$’000
Bifa BET T BT T
Continuing operations BEAREER
Revenue from contracts with BEFE#HRE
customers 6 621,723 826,513
Cost of services rendered and cost of  EHIREZ AR HEEY 2
goods sold D% (580,169) (739,438)
Gross profit EF 41,554 87,075
Other revenue H iz 6 13 7
Other income HAwg A 6 24,859 14,094
Selling and distribution costs HE RO HKA (740) (392)
Administrative expenses THRX (67,532) (44,121)
Impairment loss of goodwill EE 2 REEE (116,971) =
Net impairment loss for trade FEUW R R 2 R BB 18 55
receivables (178,032) (6,069)
Net impairment loss for other receivables  E fih fEUK BR 7k 2 SR (B &5 18 ) F 58 (2,179) -
Impairment loss for property, Y% - B REREREBE
plant and equipment (1,937) -
Impairment loss for intangible assets EREEREEE (695) =
Net impairment loss for loan and FEWER KR EETHE 2
interest receivables BB 155 (24,709) =
(Loss)/gain on change in fair value on ERSAREZ
contingent consideration payable RNTHEZE(EE) W (3,429) 4,539
Other operating expenses Hib g M - (500)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR EIE (21,961) =
(Loss)/profit from continuing HESEEK(BE) 55
operations 7 (351,759) 54,633
Finance costs BhE R A (25,800) (18,993)
Share of results of associate DIGEEE AR EE (146) =
(Loss)/profit before taxation from Q& £ ERBIAT
continuing operations (E518), wF (377,705) 35,640
Income tax expenses S fiF S 10 (2,563) (3,216)
(Loss)/profit for the year from BHEEEEBER(ER) BF
continuing operations (380,268) 32,424
Discontinued operation BARIREEK
Loss for the year from discontinued BRI E TS F N EE
operation 36 (2,669) (5,665)
Gain on disposal of equity interest iR B SN E (T &
in discontinued operation before RERIHE LR
release of foreign currency translation Uz @ FKRFT1S 54
reserve, net of income tax 36 3,225 =
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)

REZEKmR (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_ZT-_—®=-A=+—HIEE

2021 2020
—B-—F —TE_TF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bifa BT T BT T
Profit/(loss) for the year from B IFEEERFR
discontinued operation wm A, (E18) 556 (5,665)
(Loss)/profit for the year FER(ER)BR (379,712) 26,759
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMZEWE (EE)
for the year:
Items that may be reclassified A& gEEF D B i
subsequently to profit or loss: EH -
Exchange differences on mERZERZER
consolidation 59,521 (41,684)
59,521 (41,684)
Total comprehensive loss for the FAZEEEERE
year (320,191) (14,925)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: BUF AL FEMR (E54E), %R -
Equity holders of the Company RAERERE A 12 (377,799) 28,029
Non-controlling interests e = (1,913) (1,270)
(379,712) 26,759
Total comprehensive (loss)/income  BA T~ AL /E{L
attributable to: 2E(ER)WEEE
Equity holders of the Company RAFIREREA (318,278) (13,655)
Non-controlling interests SRR AR M AR (1,913) (1,270)
(320,191) (14,925)
(Loss)/earnings per share SER(E8R) BF 12

From continuing and discontinued

KEFBERDRIEREXED

operation
Basic HAK HK(8.57) cents HKO0.66 cents
AL il
Diluted bl HK(8.51) cents HKO0.66 cents
A B
From continuing operations REFELEERS
Basic BN HK(8.58) cents HKO0.79 cents
&AL oIl
Diluted #E HK(8.52) cents HKO0.79 cents
&AL Bl
From discontinuing operations REBERIEREED
Basic HIK HKO0.01 cents HK(0.13) cents
&AL oIl
Diluted b1 HKO0.01 cents HK(0.13) cents
&AL il
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e MR ORHE

At 31 March 2021
R_FE—_—F=HA=+—H

2021 2020
—B-—F —ECERE
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
MaE BT T BEET T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB REE 13 10,192 15,322
Investment property "EYE 14 - 19,604
Construction in progress EEIRE 16 440,659 405,749
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 190 762
Intangible assets B EE 15 - 724
Interest in an associate PNl o s 18 41,520 =
Loan receivables and loan interest FEUE R FE W E TR &
receivables 22 13,060 -
Goodwill [EES 19 - 116,971
505,621 559,132
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 - 278
Trade and other receivables JFEE L R R e L it L R 21 1,020,088 1,081,476
Loan receivables and loan interest B E TR K FE W E FR R B
receivables 22 9,229 72,812
Bank balances and cash RITEBRIRS 23 9,656 2,924
1,038,973 1,157,490
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables FE A BR SRR EL A RS 3R 24 162,092 163,447
Borrowings ®B’E 25 141,049 127,133
Corporate bonds NEIES 28 5,530 11,132
Lease liabilities HeEaE 17 197 560
Tax payable e TE 9,374 11,127
318,242 313,399
Net current assets MBNVE EIFAE 720,731 844,091
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREAR 1,226,352 1,403,223
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

REHBMRAER (&)

At 31 March 2021
R-FE-_—F=HF=+—H

2021 2020
—B-—F —ECERE
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
MaE BT T BEET T
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income R A 26 58,850 55,813
Borrowings BE 25 78,907 58,811
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 - 197
Contingent consideration payables FEfS S ARE 27 14,629 11,200
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIAEE 32 4,167 =
156,553 126,021
NET ASSETS EERE 1,069,799 1,277,202
Capital and reserves R R #E
Share capital R& 2R 29 49,137 42,260
Reserves # 963,871 1,176,238
Equity attributable to equity holders of — ZNA RIP&AEEH A FE(hHE2S
the Company 1,013,008 1,218,498
Non-controlling interests FEFE R 56,791 58,704
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,069,799 1,277,202

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

29 June 2021 and signed on its behalf by

Liu Rongsheng
BlkE
Chairman

FE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_T-_—F=-A=1+—HLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARERERE AR
Reserves
e
Non-
Share Share  Contrbuted ~ Exchange  Accumulated Total controling
Note cpital  premium surplus eserve Josses Tesenes Subtotal interests Total
(In HK$'000) (NEBTTAEN) i3 Bx  RAEE S BEH%  EXRE  ZHER BiE NG SHERER At
At 1 April 2019 RZZ-NERA-H 42,260 1,378,822 594,707 (34,918)  (748,718) 1,189,893 1,232,153 59974 1,292,127
Profit for the year FREH = = = - 28,029 28,029 28,029 (1,270) 26,759
Other comprehensive income (loss)  Hf2EKE (HiE)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently Ef& A& EHHEZRENERRA
to profit or loss Exchange differences on B z[EX 28
consolidation - - - (41,684) - (41,684)  (41,684) - (41,684)
Total comprehensive incomelloss) for the  ER2E (R 4%
year - - - (41,684) 28,029 (13,655) (13,655) (1,270) (14,925)
Transactions with equity holders HREREARTZRS = = = = = = = = =
At 31 March 2020 A-F-FF=A=1-H 42,260 1,378,822 594,707 (76,602)  (720,689) 1,176,238 1,218,498 58,704 1,277,202
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
REEREEHR (F)

Year ended 31 March 2021

BE_T-_—4F=ZA=+—HLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KARREREARE
Reserves
1]
Non-
Share Share Contributed  Exchange Accumulated Total controlling

Note capital  premium surplus reserve losses  reserves  Subtotal  interests Total
(In HK$'000) (NEBTTAEN) i3 Ba  RGEE S AB% EARE RAER BRE Nt FERER &t
At 1 April 2020 HZZ-FERA-A 42,260 1378822 594,707  (76,602) (720,689) 1,176,238 1,218,498 58,704 1,277,202
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (377,799) (3717,799) (377,7%9)  (1,913) (379,712)
Other comprehensive income (loss)  Hf2EKE (HiE)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently Ef& A ENHRERENBERLA
to profit or loss Exchange differenceson B2 EH ZE
consolidation - - - 59,521 - 59,521 59,521 - 59,521
Total comprehensive incomefloss) for the  FR2ENE(BR) 2%
year - - - 59,521  (377,799)  (318,278)  (318,278) (1,913)  (320,191)
Transactions with equity holders BREREAETZRE
Issue of shares upon subscription RREMRTRG 290, (i) ) 3300 35172 - - - ¥mMm 39m - 390m
Issue of shares upon conversion of RERERRTRG
debts 29(ii) 151 17,319 - - - 17,319 18,896 - 18,896
Issue of shares upon acquisition of an ~ REBHEATHHRTRA
associate 29() 2,000 33,966 - - - 33,966 35,966 - 35,966
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - - 18,854 - 18854 18854 - 18,854

6,877 87,057 - 18,854 - 105,911 112,788 - 112,788

At 31 March 2021 N—E--%=A=1-H 49,137 1,465,879 594,707 1,773 (1,098,488) 963,871 1,013,008 56,791 1,069,799
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Note:

(ii)

(iii)

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations.

The laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") require wholly foreign-owned enterprises in the PRC
("WFOE") to provide for certain statutory reserves, namely general
reserve, enterprise expansion fund and staff welfare and bonus fund
which are appropriated from the net profit as reported in the PRC
statutory accounts.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, which are WFOE, are required
to allocate at least 10% of their after-tax profit to the general
reserve until the reserve has reached 50% of its registered capital.
The general reserve can only be used, upon approval by the relevant
authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital. The
enterprise expansion fund can only be used to increase capital upon
approval by the relevant authority. The staff welfare and bonus fund
can only be used for the welfare of the employees of the subsidiaries
in the PRC. Appropriation to the enterprise expansion fund and staff
welfare and bonus fund is at the discretion of the board of directors
of the subsidiaries in the PRC.

The subsidiaries in the PRC incurred after-tax losses and therefore no
transfer to the statutory reserve was made for the years ended 31
March 2021 and 2020.

The convertible bonds reserve represents the equity components of
the convertible bonds issued. The convertible bonds issued are split
into their liability and equity components at initial recognition at the
fair values of each of the convertible bonds.

GEE

(ii)

(iii)

FEFFEEZERAERAT  2020-2021F 3K

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

mEEZSEBR (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-ZE - F=-A=1+—HILEE

[ERREREMARRERINEBHBREME
HEZHNEZRR -

RIBPEARKNME ([HE]) 2ERRER F
BONEBELE ([HIEBELE])AKETR
EERBEAMMANBAE TEERE 25—
RiEBEES CERRES BIRNRANE
£FIRE -

AEBENHEMBRABIIBEELE BR
o BRSEBECRARERBZEMPERE
EL0nFREBEECEERFBERETIMEARN
50% &t BRREESVASIARE BItE
N E RS ERPNRRFT R R IE A - 8
REEERESTUARIERE Bi/ERES
BERMIEINRA - B TRHMRAFESRIER
RPBEMBRARAETEMNZE MBAEEER
HeME TRMNRANES A b B EAFH
BEgRE-

TEMBARESRTEER Rt#E_Z
TR TECRF A=+ -HILFEYER
FEERBEER-

AR ESRET IR BT RRES 2 S E

2 BEETABRBRESRIITRAFEERSA
BEESR  HORBERESD -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-T - —F=A=1+—HILFE

2021 2020
—B-—F —TE_TF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bifa BT T BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB A (518 ) a7
from continuing operations AR T (377,705) 35,640
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operation B 4% |48 275 7 %K,/ (B18) 556 (5,665)
Amortisation of intangible assets BB E 81 31
Amortisation of other assets H b & - 121
Loss allowance on trade receivables JFE Ui B K e 18 HE A 178,032 6,069
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BB LEREITE
equipment 3,384 4,864
Depreciation of investment property KEYETE 426 568
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 572 24
Impairment loss of intangible assets B EERERR 695 -
Impairment loss of loan and interest R E K R A EREEE
receivable - 297
Impairment loss for other receivables H A FEUE IR R 518 2,179 =
Impairment loss for loan and interest JE U S T AT ) B
receivables 24,709 -
Write off trade receivables JRE Ut PR SR E 8 18 -
Write off other receivables H A EUR 3 33,064 =
Impairment of property plant and M - BB R E RS
equipment 1,937 -
Impairment loss of goodwill B EAEEEL:] 116,971 -
Interest income F 2 A (13) (7)
Finance cost BhE KA 25,800 18,993
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HE¥E  HENEKEZ
equipment Weas - (75)
Gain on disposal of other assets HEHMEE 2 Wi - (56)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B AR 2 EE 21,961 =
Provision for deposit paid BB E - 500
Loss/(gain) on fair value change of RS ARE 2 A EE
contingent consideration payables EE () 3,429 (4,539)
Waiver of other payable bR E A T EIR (16,667) =
Changes in working capital EEERE
Inventories FE 278 252
Trade and other receivables JFEE LT B Sk B L At FE LS R (131,705) (96,361)
Loan receivables FEWE R 26,304 (2,196)
Trade and other payables JE AT BR 5% B EL At FE S 3K 2,442 (49,935)
Deferred income B A (950) 9,780
Exchange difference ME 5 Z 5 - 5,269
Cash used in operations KEEEFARE (84,202) (76,426)
Income tax paid S IFEE (301) (416)
Net cash used in operating activities Z&;ZEFTARSFEE (84,503) (76,842)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

REBRTRER (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-ZE - F=-A=1+—HILEE

2021 2020
—B-—F —TE_TF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaE BET T BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZED
Interest received EIFE 13 7
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYME - BWENMEREZ
plant and equipment Fr1S500E - 2,697
Proceeds from disposal of other assets — Hi % H & & 7 FriS 208 - 600
Purchase of construction in progress BEEEIR (7,442) (2,462)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEREE - (755)
Purchase of property, plant and BEME  BEMERE
equipment (11) (41)
Net cash outflow from disposal of TERBAREELEZEER
subsidiaries (90) -
(7,530) 46
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEED
Interest paid =EEESE (24,197) (22,963)
Proceeds from shares issued BT AD & MBI TR FT 1S
upon new placing HIBFRE 39,013 =
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEERE 2 ERTD 23(b) (600) (29)
Net proceeds from borrowings BB P RIBFE 23(b) 90,566 88,277
Redemption of corporate bonds EAEPNGIIES 23(b) (5,970) =
Net cash from financing activities METHMERSFE 98,812 65,285
Net decrease in cash and cash RERREZEYRDEH
equivalents 6,779 (11,511)
Cash and cash equivalents at BERNESRESEEY
beginning of reporting period 2,924 14,326
Effect on foreign exchange rate GNEE P SR B v 2 AR
changes, net (47) 109
Cash and cash equivalents at end of HBEHRBRESRBRESZEY
reporting period, represented by BRITHSRES
bank balances and cash 9,656 2,924
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mERBBRRKE

Year ended 31 March 2021

BE

74

== &= = HIEEE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Ocean Group Development Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in Bermuda on 7 June 2001 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Bermuda Companies
Act of 1981. The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is located
at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda and its principal place of business is located at
Room 03, 22/F, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are business of
supply chain management services and ocean fishing.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"”) unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2021.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

China Ocean Group Development Limited Annual Report 2020-2021

ARIEHR

REgFEBZERAERAG(ARAF DR
ZE—EFERXAELARBE-—NAN\—FERER
AER AR EFMAK L AEREER AR -
RRATRND R BB ERZ ARG ([
RFT))GEM_ETT « A A Bl 2 s i 9 B R AR
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda * & F Z & %
BRI R BB E A B E265% FE B KN E22
BO03%E »

ARBZEBEBRIREZEBREEWMEB AR
ZEBXRBRHIEEE IR M -

BRBEAN LEGEAVBHRRANBE
(MBE D27 HEERAMBHRIER -F
——FRAZtThBERESFSHAETIE-

EHIRHA
REGAUBRRIREETE GG
([BREHMAE )BRMZABEEREER
BREERN(EBMBHREEL]) FEQ
RETRABRIARE AR AHEE 2 HEMR
EMmE MBEEMEREELNBREMAE
BBV BRERER  FEGTE(EFE
SETEA D R ZEREYBHERTN
BB X GEMRE 75 £ 4R B ([ GEM L 4%
Al 2 BRWERE



PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and contingent
consideration payables which have been measured at fair
value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise indicated.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of
the previous financial year, except for the adoption of new
and amended standards as set out below.

The Group has incurred a loss attributable to equity
holders of the company of approximately HK$377,799,000
for the year ended 31 March 2021 and operating cash
outflow of approximately HK$84,503,000. As at 31 March
2021, including the Group’s cash and bank balances
were approximately HK$9,656,000. As at the same date,
the Group had current borrowings of approximately
HK$141,049,000 and matured corporate bonds of
HK$4,530,000. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore,
the Group may not be able to realise its assets and discharge
its liabilities in the normal course of business.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-ZE - F=-A=1+—HILEE

FTEEFEE

BRERBSEATEIRZEHEEREM
SRR ELR A FEFTEIN BFHFETBER
RIVIRIE L R KM -

RENABEUBRELRZFEPBHRER
FEEAETHRRESH G ETAEERE
ERERAEESTRRBREPITEEH
Iﬁ:’éﬁo

BRBHAN MEREDEREREOZ
FhRIE -

B T FTE R #TAT RARIE T 2 RIS - PR
FRESETBERE E— M BRFEE B

HE_T-—F=A=+—HItEE K&
BB RE AR RRIER A ASBERENE
#5377,799,0007T & & & I & i 4 B &
84,503,000t R=ZZE=-_—F=ZA=+—
H AEENRESRBOTELRD A
9,656,000/ L - RAIH - AEBMREEE
475 ¥ 5141,049,0007T K C BIHI A BIE &
#4975 ¥ /4,530,000 ° A B R BRTFA
BATEEMN AJReS AHASEFBELE
ZRENEAEARE A2 AEZREAEEH
RV B BEFBEREFREEEN(E

//////

FEISFEEBRAERAT  2020-2021F 3K 75



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RENBBRRHME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021

BE

3.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In order to improve the Group’s financial position, the
directors of the Company have been implementing various
measures as follows:

(1) the Group is expected to generate positive cash flows
from its future operations;

(2) the Group continues to improve the operating efficiency
by implementing measures to tighten cost controls
over various operating expenses in order to enhance
its profitability and to improve the cash flows from its
operations in future; and

(3) The Group is actively considering to raise new capital
by carrying out fund raising activities including but not
limited to rights issue, placing of new shares and enter
into new bank loan facility.

Based on the Group's cash flow projections, taking into
account of effectiveness and feasibility of the above measures
covering a period of not less than twelve month from the end
of the reporting period prepared by the management, the
directors of the Company consider the Group would be able
to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due within the forecast period.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying value of the Group's assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any future liabilities that may
arise and to re-classify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving
the consolidated financial statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis for accounting in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements:

° Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

o Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the
amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
provide further guidance on how to determine whether
a transaction represents a business combination. In
addition, the amendments introduce an optional
“concentration test” that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is an asset rather than business acquisition, when
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or
group of similar identifiable assets.

The adoption of the amendments has no significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendment provides a practical expedient that
allows a lessee to by-pass the need to evaluate whether
certain qualifying rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic (“COVID-19-
related rent concessions”) are lease modifications
and, instead, account for those rent concessions as if
they were not lease modifications.

The adoption of the amendments has no significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Year ended 31 March 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RENBBRRHME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_ZT-_—®=-A=+—HIEE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FEEHBE#A)
The Group has not early applied new and revised AEBYWERFERR-_ZE-_SFN
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective A— BB BEEDBMGE R K
for the financial year beginning 1 April 2020. These EMZ T REIERT BB B MEE
new and revised HKFRSs include the following which Al o AT RE AR S B AARE 2 54 FHT ] I gE
may be relevant to the Group. BRI BB B E LR BB T EIE -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT3 BHH 2%
FrRMEHBRENR
HKFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” 1 January 2023
BBV BHREEN T RIRE R 2023F1H1H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 “Lease” — Covid-19-related Rent Concessions 1 June 2020
BB BHREEN6IHEI(1BF]) - BN RSZIEHEER S RZE 202056 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” — 1 January 2023
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
ARG EAN T BWERIMI(B) - RBEERB B ENE S 2023%F1A1H
Amendments to HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” — Property, 1 January 2022
Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use
R GTE6I TBE BERZEIET)—T8E - WMELRE - REAER 202241 H1H
A RE A A UL &
Amendments to HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” — 1 January 2022
Reference to the Conceptual Framework
BAMBHREEASEEEH (B —BISIELRRE 202241 H1H
Amendments to HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 1 January 2022
Assets” — Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
BB R EE REBBELKEGEEI(ER])-BEER—BITERMNAR 202251 A1H
Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018-2020 1 January 2022
BBV IEHRERER2018E2020F AT EIEET 20221 A1H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 “Investments in associates and joint To be determined
ventures” — Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture
BAMBHREEN0 & B ImE ] RES S ER 28 El &R FEME 2 hEH fF7E
WIRE |(BE]) - REFHEBECENSE XML ENLEEE
Management is assessing the impact of such new EREEATMZENELNMEIERT
standards and amendments to standards and will adopt RIERIR R 2 - WS AR IR Sk fE DR HB
the relevant standards and amendments to standards in R AR R A R B R R AR ISR T RO ZE R

the subsequent periods as required.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

The Groups are in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the above
developments are relevant to the Groups’ financial
statements but the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Groups' results of operations
and financial position.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries as at 31 March each year. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REVBBERME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_ZT-_—®=-A=+—HIEE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3.

(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)
Subsidiaries (continued)

Shenzhen Yuheng Trade Management Co., Limited (/&
JIFEEZE ZEEBRAE, “Shenzhen Yuheng”), the
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into a series
of contractual arrangement (“Contractual Arrangements”)
with Jin Yu Tang (Shenzhen) Fishery Company Limited ()%
YT EEREFR AT, "Jin Yu Tang”), wholly-owned
by Mr. Hong Maoji which enable Shenzhen Yuheng to:

- exercise effective financial and operational control
over Jin Yu Tang;

- exercise equity shareholders’ voting rights of Jin Yu
Tang;

- receive substantially all of the economic interest and
returns generated by Jin Yu Tang in consideration
for the business support and technical services
provided by Shenzhen Yuheng, at Shenzhen Yuheng’s
discretion;

- obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right to purchase
the entire equity interest in Jin Yu Tang from Mr.
Hong Maoji; and

- obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest of Jin
Yu Tang from Mr. Hong Maoji as collateral security
to guarantee performance of all of the obligations
of Mr. Hong Maoji and Jin Yu Tang under the
Contractual Arrangements.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Pursuant to applicable PRC laws and regulations,
foreign investors are restricted from conducting far
ocean fishery services or holding equity interest in an
entity conducting such services in China. As a result of
the Contractual Arrangements, the Group has rights to
variable returns from its involvement with Jin Yu Tang,
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over Jin Yu Tang, and is considered to have control over
Jin Yu Tang. Consequently, Jin Yu Tang is considered
to be a subsidiary of the Group and the financial
statements of Jin Yu Tang are included in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

However, there are uncertainties regarding the
interpretation and application of existing and future
PRC laws and regulations which could affect the
Company’s ability to exercise control over Jin Yu Tang,
its right to receive substantially all of the economic
interest generated by Jin Yu Tang, and its ability to
consolidate the financial results of Jin Yu Tang into
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The
Company believes that, based on the legal opinion
obtained from the Company’s PRC legal counsel, the
Contractual Arrangements are legally binding and
enforceable and do not violate current PRC laws and
regulations.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
income statement, statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and balance sheet
respectively.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FESHBEE)

Investments accounted for using the equity
method

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
consolidated income statement, and the Group’s share
of movements in other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint ventures
are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments

is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note (p).
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mENBHRRHME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FESHBE(E)

Changes in ownership interests BEREREE

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling P& 48 B e AR ) A B SRR AR
interests that do not result in a loss of control as Bme R AEBEGHSG REASE
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change BEMBEAZRS FIBEEEREEDE
in ownership interest results in an adjustment between BRI RER 2 BREAEE
the carrying amounts of the controlling and non- I - DA E B A Rl A ME FE#E
controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in %o EIE R R 2 R S EA A E AT
the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of SEREERZANEZEERNAEBHE
the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any BARELESNBELGESER-

consideration paid or received is recognised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to owners of the

Group.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account fiv 7N S (5] (] 2 2 172 i E ~ 2k [R]450 il #EE ok
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint BEAFE MK LGRS AR ERA
control or significant influence, any retained interest in R—IERE REBANTMAREER
the entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change BRERADEERE  MEREE 2 ZE)
in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This NER R gt H 2 ARTIERE A
fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the A SRR HEENIRE Eamm
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained T AMEIBVIGREREE kAN AT
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. EREMEENSEREEZERK
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other FRcERHIASEEEELESR
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are HEENEBNARALR  LRAER
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed KRELENEMEEKEERNSEE
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that B BERARGERAEREZEA
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive ERMIERELERBRE AFHEA
income are reclassified to consolidated income statement Rz FaR o

or transferred to another category of equity as specified/

permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an i A& & 1 FE sk B = A B8 AT B R
associate is reduced but joint control or significant AR I ERIEG R ERNTE
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the T LMRE - RIS RTA E b 2 s e
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive RNTHEE —HBoEMHBELS
income are reclassified to the consolidated income Izs 3k (an@E /A ) »

statement where appropriate.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

o equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:
o consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

3.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are
less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets
of the business acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement as a
bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date
of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses
arising from such remeasurement are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.
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3.

86

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
is measured at the excess of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over
the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed of the acquired
subsidiary.

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiary is recognised
as a separate asset. Goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, which is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. For the purpose of impairment
test and determination of gain or loss on disposal,
goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units. An
impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

In respect of a subsidiary, any excess of the acquisition
date amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed of the acquired subsidiary over the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree, if any, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored
at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGUs or the group of CGUs to
which goodwill has been allocated is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

3.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Trademarks

The initial cost of acquiring trademarks is capitalised.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Trademarks
with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is provided on the straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Computer software and Mobile app

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development activities, which involve the application
of research findings to a plan or design for the
production of new or substantially improved products
and processes, are capitalised if the product or process
is technically and commercially feasible and the Group
has sufficient resources to complete the development.
The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Other development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss as an expense as incurred.
When the asset is available for use, the capitalised
development costs are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives from the
date on which they are available for use and after
taking into account their estimated residual values,
using the straight-line method. Where parts of an item
of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis and depreciated separately. The principal annual
rates used are as follows:

Leasehold land 2%
Building 5to 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% to 33%
Computer and office equipment 20% to 33%

20% to 25%
7% to 20%
7% to 10%

Motor vehicles
Plant and machinery
Fishing vessels

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
year in which the item is derecognised.

3.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FESHBE(E)

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold KREMEFZBREHEETHRETF T
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or ARBRBESKESIEE N EE K
for capital appreciation or both. ERES RS miFE o

Investment property is initially recognized at cost, KEMENBAKRER  BEBBAR
including related transaction costs. After initial SR e RAIIG R A& - IREWE
recognition at cost, investment property is stated at R ASRATE RBEEIEZS) - DA
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Leasehold BEAEMNHEE T R TR A
land classified as finance lease commences amortization RETEERG < HRBEE - S HE AR
from the time when the land interest becomes available BEHEMHAE T MEF T &
for its intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land RE&EEHEMGF A A FR20E43
classified as finance lease and depreciation on buildings FADEERIFTESFE A EAFE - F
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate MREBERFTETENSWMEHRET
the depreciable amounts over the estimated useful R W PAEE B T EL AR -

lives of 20 to 43 years. The useful life, residual value
and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal EHEREMFERIREMFEKARD
or when the investment property is permanently /A BFEHEHETSEERKLE
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits FIESEF - AR IEERZIRE WS o £2 L1
are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising AL FEFTE R e s B 1B (IR
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the HEMSRIEFREEERTEMBRN
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the ERATHE ) FTARIEERZ Y E R
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or Hyi85s o

loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Financial assets

Investments and other financial assets

(a)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI") or through profit or loss),
and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.
For investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

3. FEEHBER#E)
() =mEE
RERAMEHMEE

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Financial assets (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(b)

(©

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss ("FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

mAEUHRERME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3.

(j) Financial assets (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
()  Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mENBHRRHME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
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3.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. XESHERE)
Investments and other financial assets (continued) REREMESHEE(E)
(c)  Measurement (continued) (c) &2 (4#&)

Debt instruments (continued) BFITR (&)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
OClI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss. When
the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss and recognised in other gains/
(losses). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented
in other gains/(losses) and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item
in the consolidated income statement.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented
net within other gains/(losses) in the period
in which it arises.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(c)

(e)

Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such inves tment s cont inue to be recognised in
consolidated income statement as other income
when the group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the
consolidated income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see
note 21 and 38 for further details.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain
both the liability and conversion option components are
classified separately into their respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be settled by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is classified as an equity
instrument.

The liability component of convertible bonds is
recognised initially at the fair value of a similar liability
that does not have an equity conversion option. The
equity component and embedded derivative component
are recognised initially at the difference between the
fair value of the convertible bonds as a whole and the
fair value of the liability component.

Any directly attributable transaction costs of issuing
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to their initial carrying
amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability
component of convertible bonds and is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The derivative component of convertible bond is re-
measured using fair value model.

If the bonds are converted, the convertible bonds
equity reserve, together with the carrying amounts of
the liability and derivative components at the time of
conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the
bonds are redeemed, the convertible bonds equity
reserve is released directly to retained profits, and any
difference between the amount paid relating to the
liability component and the fair value of the liability and
derivative components is recognised in consolidated
income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

(m)

Cash and Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise bank
deposits with original maturity with three months,
cash at banks, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, net of bank overdrafts.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties.

Revenue from the sale of merchandises (supply chain
management and ocean fishing) is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been delivered to the customer’s specific
location (delivery). Following delivery, the customer has
full discretion over the manner of distribution and price
to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility when
on selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence
and loss in relation to the goods. A receivable is
recognised by the Group when the goods are delivered
to the customers as this represents the point in
time at which the right to consideration becomes
unconditional, as only the passage of time is required
before payment is due.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interest income is recognised and accrued using the
effective interest method. When a loan receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan
receivables are recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in the currency of
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denomi nated in foreign currenc ies are recognis ed in
the statement of profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss except for those arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect
of which gains and losses are recognised directly in
equity, in which cases, the gains or losses are also
recognised directly in equity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

Assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented and, where
applicable, goodwill and fair value adjustments
on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
which are to be treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation, are translated at the
closing rate at the end of the reporting period.

Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rate.

All resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group's entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, other costs that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition, is calculated using the
first in, first out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period of the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
in the period in which the reversal occurs.

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

The loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to expected credit losses (ECLs), which
are those losses that are expected to occur over
the expected life of the trade receivables. The
loss allowance is estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic conditions
at the reporting date.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date with
any changes recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of trade
and other receivables through a loss allowance
account.

The gross carrying amount of a trade debtor or
other receivable is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic
of recovery. This is generally the case when the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income
to generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group reviews internal and external sources
of information to assess whether there is any
indication that property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, other assets, investment
property, interest in an associate, may be impaired
or impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may be reduced. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated, based on the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. Where it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the smallest group of
assets that generates cash flows independently
(i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced
to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as an
income in profit or loss immediately.

For interest in an associate recognised using the
equity method, the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment as a whole with its carrying amount.
The impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates uses to
determine the recoverable amount.

The accounting policy for recognition and reversal
of the impairment loss for goodwill is stated in
the accounting policy for goodwill in the earlier
part of this note.
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102

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leased properties Over the lease terms

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including
insubstance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there
is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
of office properties (that is those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases
of office equipment that are considered to be of
low value. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
standalone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in the statement
of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying assets
to the lessee are accounted for as finance leases.

3.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined
contribution retirement scheme for the staff in Hong
Kong are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the PRC,
contributions to the defined contribution retirement
schemes for the Group’s PRC staff are made to the
relevant government authorities in the PRC, which are
calculated on certain percentages of the applicable
payroll costs as stipulated under the requirements in the
PRC. These contributions are expensed as incurred.
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3.

106

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services
in exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost
of such transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at
the grant date. The fair value of share options granted
to employees is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a reserve within equity. The
fair value is determined using the Black-Scholes-Merton
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
of the transactions, other than conditions linked to
the price of the shares of the Company (“market
conditions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the years in which the vesting conditions are to be
fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (“vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed.
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for the
year of the review, with a corresponding adjustment to
the reserve within equity.

3.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Equity-settled transactions (continued)

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, an additional expense is recognised for any
increase in the value of the transaction as a result of the
modification, as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled before the
vesting date, it is treated as if it had vested on the date
of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a
new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described above.

Share-based payment transactions in which the
Company grants share options to subsidiaries
‘'employees are accounted for as an increase in value
of investment in subsidiaries in the Company ’s
statement of financial position which is eliminated on
consolidation.
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Year ended 31 March 2021
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The charge for current income tax is based on the
results for the year as adjusted for items that are non-
assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, any deferred tax arising from
initial recognition of goodwill; or other asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss is not
recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is recovered or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, tax
losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investment in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

3.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
consolidated income statement in the period in which
they are incurred.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method.

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3.

(x) Earnings per share
(a) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to owners of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares by the
weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account:

o the after income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and

3 the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(y) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s chief operating decision maker
for the purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.
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4,

112

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Ownership of motor vehicles

Certain motor vehicles of the Group are registered in
the name of independent third parties, which hold
the motor vehicles on behalf of the Group under trust
arrangement. In the opinion of the directors, the trust
arrangement is sufficient to create valid trusts under
the law of Hong Kong that the Group is the beneficial
owner of the motor vehicles. Therefore, the Group has
accounted for these motor vehicles as property, plant
and equipment of the Group.

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of
receivables based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates (Note 3(p) and 38). The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
investment property and intangible assets

The management determines whether the Group's
property, plant and equipment, investment property
and intangible assets are impaired where an indication
of impairment exists. This requires an estimation of
the recoverable amount of the property, plant and
equipment, investment property and intangible assets,
which is equal to the higher of net selling price or the
value in use. Estimating the value in use requires the
management to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from property, plant and equipment,
investment property and intangible assets and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Any impairment will
be charged to profit or loss.

4,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-ZE - F=-A=1+—HILEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4, BESITEFTRHEE
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Fair value of convertible bonds

The fair value of convertible bonds are determined
using valuation techniques including reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing model. The inputs
to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree
of judgement is required in establishing fair values.

Fair value of contingent consideration payable

The fair value of contingent consideration payable was
determined by using valuation techniques as the date
of acquisition and the end of each financial reporting
period. The Group uses its judgement to select a
method and make assumptions, include estimating
future cash flows from the acquired business and/ or
post-acquisition performance of the acquired businesses
and fair value of the Company’s shares, which are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in assumption used
could materially affect the fair value of these balances
and as a result affect the Group’s financial condition
and results of operation.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill have
suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 3(f). The recoverable
amounts of groups of cash-generating units (the
“"CGUs"”) have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates (Note 19).

Going concern

The assessment of the going concern assumption
involves making a judgement by the Board of the
Company, at the end of the reporting period, about
the future outcome of events or conditions, which
are inherently uncertain. The Board of the Company
considers that the Group have the capabilities to
continue as going concerns and the major events
and conditions, which may give rise to business risks,
that individually or collectively may cast doubt upon
the going concern assumption and related mitigating
measures taken by management are set out in note 3.
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Year ended 31 March 2021
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5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 5. ZHERER
The Group manages its businesses by individual companies, AEEERER S BRIBE —EHLEE DB
which are organised by a mixture of both business lines and BRI AR EREER AEBEEIRENTZ
geographical locations. In a manner consistent with the way BRTAEEEREERRA(RRAES)E
in which information is reported internally to the Group's HEBEARERR TG ZERTAEZ A
chief operating decision makers, who are the directors of X 2HIATIRED L - MES HHEMEE
the Company, for the purposes of resource allocation and DECVARR RIS DL ¢

performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following reporting segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reporting segments:

- Supply chain management segment which provides =
services involving the planning and implementation of
an integrated solution for the effective flow of business,
logistic, information and funds;

- Ocean fishing segment which provides fishing and =
catching business in open sea beyond the coastal
region.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group's chief operating decision makers monitor
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reporting segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all allocated assets with the
exception of interest in associates and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables attributable to the sales/service activities of the
individual segment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reporting
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets
attributable to those segments. However, assistance
provided by one segment to another, including sharing
of assets and technical know-how, is not measured.

Information regarding the Group’s reporting segments
as provided to the Group's chief operating decision
makers for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 is set out below.
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mENBHRRHME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

5. 2MERGE)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (a) DEHEEF BERAEEBEE)
Continuing operations
FEEEER
Supply chain
management Ocean fishing
services business business Consolidated
HERERREEE BIRBER &a
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZEC-F et SEC-F bkl —2--F EEmboaesd
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BETR BETR BRI BETR
Segment revenue APhE
Sale of qoods to external customers ANSEFHEER 618,937 806,753 2,786 19,760 621,723 826,513
618,937 806,753 2,786 19,760 621,723 826,513
Segment results P (176,010) 59,405 (20,141) 335 (196,151) 62,640
Unallocated income RARMA 1,145 951
Unallocated expenses KAMEY (185,262) (31,167)
(Loss)/profit for the year from BELCERER (FE) /BA
continuing operations (380,268) 32424
Assets and liabilities BERAR
Segment assets AHEE 1,006,502 1,077,070 492,28 613923 1498730 1,690,993
Unallocated assets, including interests in A2 EEE BEREEAFER
associates 45,864 25,629
Consolidated total assets LREESR 1,544,504 1,716,622
Seqment labilities PBAE 150,873 111,128 146,735 136,140 297,608 247,068
Unallocated labilties APEEE 177,187 192,152
Consolidated total liabilities GREfELE 474,795 439.420
Other segment information A HER
Amortisation of intangible assets BREERH - - - - 81 31
Amortisation of other assets HpEEEH - - - - - 121
Depreciation ik
- Property, plant and equipment VEN T ET 216 1,287 2,582 3,116 3,384 4,864
- Right-of-use assets -FRELE - - - - 572 A%
- Investment property ~RENE - - - - - 568
Impairment loss: HERE:
~ Net impairment loss for other receivables — £ fh el 3 7 B EB R FE - - 2,179 - 2179 -
~ Net impairment loss for trade receivable —ENR I ESESE 166,038 3877 11,99 2,192 178,032 6,069
- Impairment loss of goodwill -HBERERE - - 116,971 - 116,971 -
~ Net impairment loss for loan and -EUETRENFISHERET
interest receivables L] 24,709 - - - 24,709 297
- Impairment loss of property, -h% BRERXEREER
plant and equipment - = 1,937 = 1,937 =
- Impairment loss of intangible assets  —~EFEERERE - - - - 695 -
Provision for deposit paid EfkeRfE - 500 - - - 500
Additions to non-current assets REFRPEE 11 - - 36 1 4
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Year ended 31 March 2021
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5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 5. oHER(E
(b) Geographical information (b) HEZFFR

The Group’s operations are primarily derived from
external customers located in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue from external customers by geographical
market and information about the non-current assets
by locations of assets:

FEMEBEIBRAMREBREE
HRSNBESS - FRBFIIRIE 5815
AR SR 15 5N 24 B AT L
BEAENBRANIERDEENE
* o

Revenue from external Carrying amounts of
customers non-current assets
REMBEF RS FRBEEMNREE

2021

2020 2021 2020

SEC—F Mkl T 5 ekt

HK$°000
BB BETT BETT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Hong Kong BB 200,982 27,474 266 20,624
PRC =8 417,955 784,111 495,385 524,106
Others HAth 2,786 14,928 9,970 14,402
621,723 826,513 505,621 559,132

(c) Information about major customers (0 FEEFZEHR

For the year ended 31 March 2021, two customers
(2020: four customers) that individually accounted for
over 10% of total revenue of the Group are set out

’%Z:l: 7_g¢:H:+—E¢¢
B -AMEEF(ZT_TF  IE¥
PIAAEAEBAWEE10% 3]

below: E PN
Supply chain
management
services business Consolidated
it PE S B AR IS 375 ®e
2021 2020 2021 2020
bt T OTF bl T TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
B¥T T BT T BT T BT T
Customer A ZEA - 472,753 - 472,753
Customer B =B 461,110 131,400 461,110 131,400
Customer C Z5C 71,648 112,759 71,648 112,759
Customer D 25D - 89,314 - 89,314
532,758 806,226 532,758 806,226
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Year ended 31 March 2021
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6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 6. WmkHMUYA
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and other income during REEBRARFEROWZ R EAMW A Z DT
the year is as follows: T
2021 2020
B —F —E-FTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations FEREEK
Revenue from contracts with EEAHWE
customers
Sale of goods from: RENUTIEA 2ERIEE -
Supply chain management services MRS B IR RIS TS
business 618,937 806,753
Ocean fishing business NSRESTECE Y 2,786 19,760
Revenue 'ON 621,723 826,513
Interest income F B U A 13 7
Other revenue Hiblhzs 13 7
Interest income from other loan HaEZF B YA 3,446 8,100
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HE&EWE « FE M &2 Wk
equipment - 75
Gain on disposal of other assets HEHMEE 7 Uz . 56
Government subsidy income R T 78 B 1,608 4,543
Waiver of other payables TR H Ath FE T 5RIE 16,667 -
Sundry income HMIEIT A 3,138 1,320
Other income Hab A 24,859 14,094
Total revenue O i§ 646,595 840,614
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REVBBERME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-T - —F=A=1+—HILFE

7. (LOSS)/PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATION 7.

(Loss)/profit before taxation from continuing operations is
stated after charging (crediting):

FEREREK(BR) ER

SBICEEB 2 BBAT(BR), ST

GtA) FHI&EEIR :

2021 2020
—B-—F —TTF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Employee benefit expenses EEEAMAX
(including directors’ remuneration) (BIEESEM2)
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & 2B R EWFIZ 14,012 16,730
Pensions BIKE 397 507
14,409 17,237
Finance costs ES=d2%N
Corporate bond interest REEHFE 1,108 1,373
Interest for other borrowing HEmEE 2B 20,354 14,288
Interest for bank borrowing IRITIBEZF B 4,298 3,332
Lease interest expenses BEMBHAXZ 40 -
25,800 18,993
Other items HiyEH
Amortisation (included in administrative #4 (5 AfTE RIS ) :
expenses):
— Intangible assets —EmEE 81 31
— Other assets —HihEE - 121
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN & 1,150 1,824
Cost of goods sold EEEmAA 580,169 739,438
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and equipment —WE BB KERE 3,384 4,580
— Right-of-use assets —FRAEEE 572 24
Exchange loss, net b &5 18 55 40 4,794
Impairment loss: IEEE
— Net impairment loss for trade — R FOREE R F 5
receivables 178,032 6,069
— Net impairment loss for other — H b e U SR TR (B B 18R 58
receivables 2,179 =
— Net impairment loss for loan and —ERE SRR T BB
interest receivables 24,709 =
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries i EH B A R EE 21,961 -
Property rental expenses in respect of — 4GHATHE 2 ¥R SR
short-term lease 1,842 3,876
Provision for deposit paid (included in B2 &R4E Gt A L& L)
other operating expenses) - 500
Provision for impairment of BV EERERE
intangible assets 695 =
Provision for impairment of goodwill R E R 116,971 -
Provision for impairment of property, Y% - B kR B EREE
plant and equipment 1,937 =
Written off (included in administrative  5F#H :
expenses):
— Trade receivables — FEUL AR X 18 -
— Other receivables — H M FE YR 33,064 -
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GEMBEHRRME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_T-_—F=-A=1+—HLFE

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEMS
The aggregate amounts of remuneration received and RAREEZD WM EKENESAZENT ¢

receivable by the Company’s directors are as follows:

2021
—E_-F
Salaries,  Contribution
allowances  to defined
Directors' Discretionary  and benefits  contribution

fees bonus in kind scheme Total
Ezhe WiERL REWNE  EHR it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT A¥TR BETT BETT BETT

Executive Directors HES
Mr. Liu Rongsheng ARELE 1,200 - 251 18 1,469
Mr. Fan Guocheng e 840 - 1 9 861
Ms. Wei Qing Rt 840 - - 18 858
2880 - 23 I 3188
Non-executive Directors FHES
Mr. Yang Yong RELE
(resiqned on 23 April 2020) (R=2-ZFMA=+=AEH) - - - - -
Mr. Lui Chun Pong BEALE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Cai Haiming oy
(appointed on 17 January 2020) (W-2-ZF-F+tREZA) - - - - -
240 - - - 240
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Lam Man Hing 3 E- i 120 - - - 120
M. Li Cao Rt 120 - - - 120
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John 2ZERE
(appointed on 17 March 2020) (R=2-ZF=A+LREZf) 120 - - - 120
30 - - - 360
3,480 - 263 45 3,788

FESFEEZEARAT 2020-2021F®% 119



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RENBBRRHME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_ZT-_—®=-A=+—HIEE

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEM&(£E

2020
R0RE
Salaries,  Contribution
alowances  to defined
Directors' ~ Discretionary  and benefits  contribution

fees bonus in kind scheme Total
5ig 2E REBRH
EEYE WEZL  REWAE  FECEX @i

HK§000  HK§'000  HKS000  HK§'000  HK§'000
BRI BRI BRI B%Tr A%Tx

Executive Directors HES
Mr. Liu Rongsheng ARERE 1,182 - - 18 1,200
Mr. Fan Guocheng SRS 822 - - 18 840
Ms. Wei Qing RERt 822 - - 18 840
2,826 - - 54 2,880
Non-executive Directors FTEs
Mr. Yang Yong ABRE
(resigned on 23 April 2020) (R=Z-ZEMA-+=REN) 400 - - - 400
Mr. Lui Chun Pong At E 240 - - - 240
M. Cai Haiming -y
(appointed on 17 January 2020) (RZB-ZF-AT+HEZRH) = - - - -
640 - - - 640
Independent non-executive Directors BukynES
Mr. Pang Pui Hung, Paton (resigned on 17 March 2020) ¥/l /e
(W=Z-FF=A+LREM) 15 - - - 15
Mr. Lam Man Hing €yt 135 - - - 135
Mr. Li Cao TRt 135 - - - 135
Mr. Kam Hou Yin, John SZELE
(appointed on 17 March 2020) (R=2-FE=A++AEER) 5 5 - - >
390 - - - 390
3856 - - 5 3910
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration for the years ended 31
March 2021 and 2020. In addition, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
join, or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss
of office for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

There were no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
of the directors of the Company that were entered into or
subsisted during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

The directors are of the opinion that no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to
the Company’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company or a connected
entity of a director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals during the year included
three directors (2020: three), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining two
(2020: two) highest paid individuals, who are not directors,
are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mAEUHRERME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021

BEEME(E

REE-ZE-_—FR_FT-_FF=H=+—
HIEFE  SESMERT L NEL R B NE
FAME 228 I NEBBEREE
ZE I FRIEZTF-A=F—HIHF
ERERESZHEANE  (EAEEMNA
AEESFREMARNEE R IZE)  iEA
E BB AR o

ARARBE—T_—FR-_FT_FTF=H
=t+— Etirmlﬁﬂijfﬁué$ﬁ
RB|AZER  BEERKEMR S

EERR NAFERSIBE_Z=_—F K
—ECEF =A==+ —HIEFEREME
M BEFEARBER— T BBARARE
BZEARG THREHNAERQRESRR
EECHEERNEREEERSHECE
S -

EURESHEAT
imﬁﬁﬁ%%AiE% f(—EB-F

=()EE  EMESFBEE#IN EXXER
Aﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁsﬁﬁﬁl(fffi
M) EEREZRFTAL EMESFE
E | (N

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECERF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BEET T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #&  ZEE R EWH = 1,392 1,210
Pensions RIKE 36 36
1,428 1,246
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RENBBRRHME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021

BE_T-_—4F=ZA=+—HLFE
9.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) 9. HUBBHAL(E
The two (2020: two) highest paid individuals’ remuneration M ZE_FF : WhL)Re A A
falls within the following band: NFATEE :
Number of employees
EE"A
2021 2020
—EC--F —T_TF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 ZZ % 1,000,0007T 2 2
No remuneration was paid by the Group to any of the two REBE_T_—FR_F_FTF=-A= ‘|'—
(2020: two) highest paid individuals as an inducement to join HIEFE AEBXERERNRC(ZZEZ
or upon joining the Group, or as a compensation for loss of TF M &E AT ERER - ER
office for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020. SREN N AR &R B 3 5 A0 A 7S B [ B A 4%
B SEABERA(E o
There was no arrangement under which any of the two RBEZE - —FR_F_TF=A=+—
(2020: two) highest paid individuals waived or agreed to HIEFE: MU(ZZ2FF : M) &=
waive any remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2021 ATBET I MEXRERETMME 2%
and 2020. B
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 10. FREHIRAX
The Group's profits are taxed at different rates depending on RE B Y A FR S B B R A - A A B R
the country in which the profits arises. The key applicable tax BURREERNABR - FZEANHEN
rates are as below: ™
On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council RZEBE-NF=A=+—H0 BELEZA
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 Bt FRBUERT)(FB7H) EHE
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates ZX[EBIEZ ) 5| AFS TR o 15451
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and ERR T N\F=ZAZTNBEBKAZE
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered 7 WHRBHHE - BEMESHARE - &5
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits 1% 5 B & 8 | 5 #2,000,0007T 2 )& F #§ 1%
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and Tt #£8.25% =k 1t + 1 A 38 & #2,000,0007T
profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The 2 ML T K 16.5% a0 11 ° TFFA RIS
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered MARGIEE 2 SEEE 2R MNEEEIRS—
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate FRE16.5% R F °
of 16.5%.
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The provision for the PRC enterprise income tax is based on
the statutory tax rate of 25% on the estimated taxable profits
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax rules
and regulations of the PRC for the year ended 31 March
2021 (2020: 25%).

According to the relevant law and regulations in PRC
Enterprises Income Tax — Section 27 sub-section 1, enterprises
engaged in catching fishery business can be exempted from
PRC Enterprises Income Tax. The Ministry of Agriculture of
the PRC issued the ocean fishing license to a subsidiary of the
Company which was expired on 31 March 2021. It will be
subject to PRC enterprise income tax thereafter.

No Cambodia corporate income tax has been provided
as there is no estimated taxable profits determined in
accordance with relevant income tax rules and regulations of
Cambodia for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

10.

FEEFEEZERAMRAT  2020-2021F 3K

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mAEUHRERME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-ZE - F=-A=1+—HILEE

B (&

BT - —F=A=+—HItFE" &
EMSHEESRIEABN T EEHAE
B R SE MR - IR AT AR T I B A E B X
25%FtE(ZF =T F : 25%)°

RIBFBEXASHRAARARNER — 56827
RER EMBAXNEEAR LR
RESEMEY - PEREEMERARE —
R B ARRESFHEAE FFrAES
RIB-—F=A=+—HEH - LRFH
R BIRRATEN -

BE_T-_—F=A=+—HILLFE RE
RIBRBAAEHRA FORREEGEHE

ARBUS A WA IERBEERMAEH(Z
T_TF E)-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REVBBERME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-T - —F=A=1+—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The provision for the Mozambique corporate income tax is
based on the statutory tax rate of 32% on the estimated
taxable profits determined in accordance with the relevant
income tax rules and regulations of Mozambique for the
year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: 32%). Tax benefit for
Mozambique Investment Law for fishing industry can enjoy
50% reduction on corporate income tax rate.

10. FifsBimx (&

BE_Z-_—F=A=+—HILFE EX
L s R PSRBT B4 5t R R B s A IR
NWEEMERIEL  BAVMEIRERRL
RERABHAMEEREE(ZT=-F
F32%) RERERBREZHHHEZHIA
BER/AIZALEAEHME Z50% L

2021 2020
—E-—fF ZEETF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations BEREER
Current tax BNEA%E H
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNIFH
— current year —RFE - 311
— over-provision for prior year —BEFEBEEE (1,180) =
PRC enterprise income tax A B 3PS T
— Current year —REE 47 1,103
— (Over)/under-provision for prior year —BEFEE (BERE)
BETR (659) 29
Cambodia corporate income tax, current  NFERIFIEDEFFEH
year - =
Mozambique corporate REERERE RGN
income tax, current year 188 1,773
Discontinued operation BRI - -
Deferred tax RIEIE 4,167 -
Total income tax expenses from continuing FFERL & B &R IFREERK 2
and discontinued operation FS T < # 58 2,563 3,216
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEVBHRERME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_T-_—F=-A=1+—HLFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued) 10. Fr8BiRAx (&)
Tax expense for the year is reconciled to (loss)/ profit N F EIFE A S 355 2 Bi 18 B S BARR B AT
before taxation from continuing operation (BR) BFEER
2021 2020
—B--F —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Loss)/profit before taxation from BESEER 7GR (ER)
continuing operation il (377,705) 35,640
Notional tax calculated on profit before TR B B A A FE R B =R
taxation, calculated at the rates RN EHNZ
applicable to profits in countries MEFE 2 ZRTIE
concerned (57,513) 10,696
Non-deductible expenses AR IR 2 52,167 2,460
Non-taxable revenue FEE R T W 2 (214) =
Unrecognised tax losses B R R 2 FLIE & 1B 10,749 5,616
Unrecognised temporary differences WRHER Z B 5 32 229
Utilisation of previously 155 R SC R 1R R AERR 2
unrecognised tax losses TiIEETE (667) (14,028)
(Over)/under-provision for prior year BEEE GREBEEE) BETR (1,839) 29
Tax concessions WIS EE (189) (1,786)
Share of result of associate DI E R R FEE 37 =
Income tax charges FriS itz H 2,563 3,216
11. DIVIDENDS 11. BB
The Board do not recommend the payment of a dividend for EEETEBRNAFERE(ZE_F
the Year (2020: Nil). FE)e
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REVBBERME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021

BHE-_T-_—F=A=+—HLFE

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BRUBR)&F
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is FIRER GBS B TRIESE R DRI
based on the profit attributable to equity holders of the R RN TIIE R A A (G A A R E
Company for continuing and discontinued operation and the AR B DT BRI INEFE SRS TE
weighted average number of the Company’s ordinary shares (N
in issue during the year as follows:
2021 2020
—E=-—-F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders — ZxA EIRRHERE B A JELS (E18),
of the Company il
from continuing operation REFFELE S (378,355) 33,694
from discontinued operation REBERIESEER 556 (5,665)
(377,799) 28,029
Number of shares
RGEE
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETTF
Weighted average number of ordinary R EEREARRRNZ
shares in issue during the year for the FAL BT BRD
purposes of basic earnings per share N S 19 A% 8 4,410,469,286 4,225,960,179
Effect to dilutive potential ordinary share BEEEENTRR 8
— Convertible bonds — AT AR & 25 31,172,000 31,172,000
Weighted average number of ordinary RLGTEEREERMN
shares in issue during the year for the FRBBEITL RN
purposes of diluted earnings per share DORE G A% 2 4,441,641,286 4,257,132,179
Diluted (Loss)/earnings per share is calculated by adjusting R RA#eE TRk e SRiES
the number of ordinary shares outstanding due to the effect (B1R)/ B ERARBITEIINE BRZ
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares and the Group’s profit A NARRRER ARIEREERNGE -
attributable to owners of the Company.
The Company has dilutive potential ordinary shares AAEIHBEIBMRESE AN EEEE N
attributable to convertible bonds. TR -
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mENBHRRHME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-ZE - F=-A=1+—HILEE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥% BERR®E
Leasehold Computer
land and Furniture  and office Motor  Plant and Fishing
building ~ and fixtures  equipment vehicles  machinery vessels Total
AETHR KR

BF GARKE WOERR RE  HEREE Rk #it
HKJ000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BRI BRTR BETR ABTR ABTRr ARTr A%Tx

Cost A
At 1 April 2019 R-E-NEWA-H 25,436 38 551 8,471 2,410 25,643 62,549
Additions AE - - 5 - 36 - 41
Disposal e - - = (5,.247) - - (5,247)
Transfer to investment property ~ ERZRANE (21,450) - = = = - (21,450)
Exchange realignment ERA% - 2 (24) 8 (19 (1,030) (1,143)
At 31 March 2020 and RZZ-ZF=P=1-BR

1 April 2020 “Z-ZENA-A 3,986 36 532 3,216 2,367 24613 34,750
Additions AE - - 11 - - - 11
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAF - - (381) = = - (381)
Exchange realignment EiBE (515) 3 12 (30) 43 1,266 719
At 31 March 2021 RZB=-£=B=t-8 341 39 174 3,186 2,40 25,879 35,159
Accumulated depreciation and Rt TERHE

impairment
At 1 April 2019 R-E-NEWA-H 2,335 6 354 3,429 488 12,415 19,027
Depreciation nE 495 8 74 1,653 359 2,275 4,864
Transfer to investment property ~ ERZRENE (1.278) - = = = - (1.278)
Disposal HE - - = (2,650) - - (2,650)
Exchange realignment ESBE - - (15) - (6) (514) (535)
At 31 March 2020 and RZZ-ZF=P=1-BR

1 April 2020 “Z-2ENA-A 1,552 14 413 2432 841 14,176 19,428
Depreciation e 183 8 4 375 373 2,404 3,384
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - - (359) - - - (359)
Impairment loss HEEE 1,937 - = = = = 1,937
Exchange realignment EiBE (201) 1 7 (15) 23) 808 577
At 31 March 2021 R=2=-§Zp=1-8 3471 3 102 2792 1,191 17,388 24,967
Net book value BEFE
At 31 March 2021 R-2--£=R=1-A - 16 n 394 1,219 8,491 10,192
At 31 March 2020 W-E-F£=f=1-H 2,434 2 119 784 1,526 10,437 15,322
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Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_Z-_—F=-A=1+—HILEE

14.

128

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14. REWE
HK$'000
BT T
Cost 5%
At 1 April 2019 RZZE—NFWMA—H -
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EEE Y R MR 21,450
At 31 March 2020 R_ZB_EF=A=+—H 21,450
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (21,450)
At 31 March 2021 R=B=--—F=H=+—8H -
Accumulated depreciation and impairment R TERREE
At 1 April 2019 RZZE—hFMA—H -
Transfer from property, plant and equipment HEE B Y RENMRE 1,278
Depreciation e 568
At 31 March 2020 R-ZB_ZTF=A=+—H 1,846
Depreciation e 426
Disposal of subsidiaries R B A Al (2,272)
At 31 March 2021 R-B--§=A=+-—H -
Net book value BREFE
At 31 March 2021 R-B-_—%=A=+—H -
At 31 March 2020 RZE-_TF=A=+—H 19,604
2021 2020
—B=—fF —ECTE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
The following amounts have been THSEERGEERK
recognised in the consolidated Hih 2 EIRER R ER
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income:
Rental income HE WA 132 264
Direct operating expenses arising from EERSWAZIREMERES
investment property that generated ZEERKERY
rental income 43 81
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

As at 31 March 2020, investment property was pledged as
collateral for the Group’s borrowings.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group leased out
a formerly self-occupied residential flat located in Hong Kong
and reclassified such flat as an investment property.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property, including
leasehold land portion, at the end of the year ended 31
March 2020 was HK$20,562,000. The fair value has been
arrived at based on a valuation at the end of the reporting
period, determined by the directors of the Company. No
valuation has been performed by independent qualified
professional valuers. The valuation performed by the directors
of the Company was carried out with reference to recent
market prices for similar properties in similar locations,
which was classified as level 3 under HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement”.

The Group’s investment property is held for rental purpose
under operating leases and/or for capital appreciation.

The Group leases out premises under operating leases with
rentals receivable monthly. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 2 years. The lease contracts do not contain
residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase
the property at the end of lease term.

The above investment property is depreciated over the
estimated useful lives of 20 to 43 years. The useful lives,
residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The subsidiary with investment property was disposed during
the year ended 31 March 2021 to independent third party,
details in Note 35(ii).

14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mAEUHRERME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-ZE - F=-A=1+—HILEE

REWME(E
R-_T_FTE=-A=1+—B REVEEHLR
ARAKERE ZEHm-

ai—7—7£ﬁ ﬂ + Etif’l‘%
BHEMNEE LR BB ETEML
ZEMEFDBRIREDE -

REBEE-_ZT-_TF=A=+—HIFEX"
AEBMBREYE(BFEAE LD )NAFE
B /A7 %20,562,0007T ° /&Wﬁmﬁbﬁz}m
RESNBREHRMETHGER I$
KB A éii%ﬁﬁ%Lﬁ%ﬁ:$
%%ﬂ@%wﬁm%m%ﬁmm%mﬁ%m
BETHE EREE BV BREERFE13
RIATFEAE | DEAEE=H-

REBNREYE T RIBZLER
ER/HERBERE -

BERAEHR

AEERBELEMELEYME - 2 A REE
T HE- RIS REMF - HESHTE
ERBREEER R RABARERERF
BEYMERHEESE-

bR B YRR A A8 F 202435
AHEE A EAFY MBREERTES
EREREPRBIT LR BEE B R TELTHA
o

KRB —F=ZA=+—HAFAZREDE

MHBATE SR —2BIE=S  #E
SRR M EE35() -
FEISFEEBERAERAT 2020-2021F% 129



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RENBBRRHME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_Z-_—F=-A=1+—HILEE

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B EE
Computer
Mobile app software Trademarks Total
TEERER £t L st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AETT BETT BT BT

Reconciliation of carrying IREEYR-

amount-year ended BE—Z-ZF

31 March 2020 ZRA=t+—-HLEE
At 1 April 2019 RZFE—-NEMOA—H - - - -
Additions NE 755 - = 755
Amortisation B (31) = = (31)
At 31 March 2020 R-B-ZF=A=+—-H 724 - - 724
Reconciliation of carrying IRE{EYR -

amount-year ended BE-E2--—-F

31 March 2021 ZA=t+—-HLEE
At 1 April 2020 RZZZZFMHA—H 724 - - 724
Amortisation Y (81) - - (81)
Impairment loss AR (695) - - (695)
Exchange realignment BE SR 52 - - 52
At 31 March 2021 R-Z2-—-§=H=+—H - - - -
At 31 March 2020 R-ZE-_ZF=H=+—-H
Cost DN 755 7 87 849
Accumulated amortisation and 2ETEE M REES

impairment losses (31) (7) (87) (125)

724 - - 724

At 31 March 2021 R-E-—-§=A=+—-H
Cost DN 810 7 - 817
Accumulated amortisation and 2 RREEE

impairment losses (810) (7) - (817)
Management assessed that the recoverable amounts of BB THEREANIIWE SEES
mobile app would be minimal. Accordingly, impairment loss BN At FAZTEIEARERELR
of HK$695,000 was made on the mobile app during the year. B EEB 695,000 °
The subsidiary with trademarks was disposed during the year BEERENHBATINEEZE —_ZE-_—F=H
ended 31 March 2021 to independent third party. =t —HIEFEHETHEIE=T-

130 China Ocean Group Development Limited Annual Report 2020-2021



16.

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEVBHRERME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_T-_—F=-A=1+—HLFE

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 16. EEIR
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Professional fishing vessels -

Opening book amount BRRIERE (A 405,749 421,780
Additions INE 7.442 2,462
Exchange realignment ME SRR 27,468 (18,493)
Closing book amount BARARTE(E 440,659 405,749

Among professional fishing vessels in construction in
progress, 4 of them are pledged to a financial institution for
bank borrowings (note 25).

RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows

the following amounts relating to the leases in respect
of office premises:

ERTREBEZEREM EPigo KH#
FLA— S R - AESRITE K
25)e

17. FHEEEREEESEE
(i) HEFBRRFERAERZEEHE

RAEMBARRRRIITERXAEYE
HERBE RN

At 31 March At 1 April
2021 2020
R —F [Nt
=A=+—8 mA—H
HK$'000 HK$’000
BEET T BEET T

Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
Non-current IERE 190 762

Lease liabilities HEAE

Non-current JERH - (197)
Current mEh (197) (560)
(197) (757)
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17. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 17. FHESENREEEE(E
(continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets AEBEFHAEEENRAEEMNULN
and the movements during the year are as follows: FENEFBERLOT :
Office
premises
MAEYE
HK$'000
BETIT
Cost %N
As at 1 April 2019 RZZE—NFWMA—H =
Additions NE 786
As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021 R-B-ZEF=A=t+—-HR=-ZE=-—F
=H=+-—H 786
Accumulated depreciation ZEiE
As at 1 April 2019 RZZE—NFWMA—H =
Charge for the year FRZ M 24
As at 31 March 2020 RZZB_TF=A=+—H 24
Change for the year FAZ M 572
As at 31 March 2021 R=-ZB-_—%=A=+—H 596
Carrying amounts IRMEE
As at 31 March 2021 R-B-—-F=ZA=+—8 190
As at 31 March 2020 RZZB_TF=A=+—H 762
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17. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES
(continued)

17. ERAEEERBEESE(E

(i)

(iii)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income

shows the following amounts relating to the leases in
respect of office premises:

(i) FE2EHRERABRIAZESHE

RAEzERERIIREARAZYEMR

EEMzEMAT :

For the For the
year ended year ended
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
BZE HE
—EC--F —TEF
Ey: e d=l —HA=t+—H
LEE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Depreciation charge of right- EREEERESXT
of-use assets
— Properties leased for own use —EBRACHEYE 572 24
Property rental expenses in respect of SEHIEEZWHEHALMAT
short-term leases 2,214 3,979

The total cash outflow for new lease recognised as
right-of-use assets in the year ended 31 March 2021
was HK$600,000 (2020: HK$29,000), excluding short-
term leases.

The company’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The company leases an office. Rental contracts are
typically made for periods of approximately 17 months.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

REBEE-ZZT-_—F=A=+—HL*F
B HREFERAEEECHHEZRS
4858 58 600,000 ( —E-F
F: F#29,0000T) TEERBHEE -

(i) ARARAZHEXBERASTEE

ARRHE—FHAE -BERH R

2491718 8 2 T o

HEGRRDRERNEERER B2 &
PRHER B AG AT - FR AR B 2 HE
BEERERIN HEBRTIEINE
MR% HEEETSREREEZER

Han
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17. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(continued)

(iii) The company’s leasing activities and how these are

accounted for (continued)

17. ERAEEERBEESE(E

(i) ARARZHEXBERASTTERE(E)

At 31 March At 1 April
2021 2020
et bes Sl N T _TF
=A=+-—H MA—H
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Lease liabilities HEAE 197 757
Less: Current portion of B IEmE A G BNERE S
non-current liabilities (197) (560)
- 197
Gross lease liabilities- HEBGEEE—
minimum lease payments: RIREERF 200 600
Not later than 1 year NS - 200
Later than 1 year but not DI FEBTDREE
later than 5 years 200 800
Future finance charges on leases HE 72 R (3) (43)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBERE 197 757
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18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18.
2021 2020
—EB-—F —TFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Acquisition BA 41,666 =
Share of loss I EE (146) -
41,520 =
The associate is accounted for in the consolidation financial BMENTERERENGESBERERAA
statements using the equity method, details of which at the AR AN RE HIRAE BN T -
end of the reporting period are as follows:
Place of
incorporation/
registration and Proportion of registered
Name of associate operation Registered capital capital held by the Group Principal activities
M,
BHENT BB a1 R AR it B dMELX XEERSEMERLS FEED
Indirect
&
Shenzhen Hailat Frozen The PRC RMB100,000,000 35% Trading and retailing of
Seafood Co., Ltd.* frozen seafood
AYTmERESER P AR #100,000,0007T BERTELREH
BRAR
* for identification purpose only.
Relationship with the associate B R N TR
Shenzhen Hailat Frozen Seafood Co., Ltd is engaged in FNTEMRESERERAANFEKE
trading and retailing of frozen seafood in PRC, which provide BEENTEALREGHE  BANEBEAHBE
an opportunity to the Group to expand its fishing business. HEFRIBHHOS o
Fair value of investments REZATE
The above associate is private company and there is no it AT AL BIRETETIS
quoted market price available for the investments. B o
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18.

136

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

18.

Summarised financial information of Shenzhen Hailat Frozen
Seafood Co., Ltd, the material associates of the Group is set
out below, which represents amounts shown in the associate’
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
and adjusted by the Group for equity accounting purposes
including any differences in accounting policies and fair value

adjustments.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of the associates as of 31 March 2021 and
operating results for the period from 25 March 2021 to 31

March 2021:

Gross amount of the associate

R ABE

RNz s ()

REBEABERBRYHENREBER
BRARZMBERGRAINT - ZFERE
ERRBEEVBREERGHRNB L QA

MBHEM TR YRARENERSR
REFLRE BEREABRRZIEMNERR

ATERE -

TEBMABERARNBRE_T - —F=H
=+ HZPBEHUARE T - —F=A
_-1—35 HE-_ZT-_—F=A=1t—HzZK%

2021
—E_—F

HK$'000
BT

Total non-current assets JEmB) A EAAE 4,892
Total current assets MENEEBTE 128,378
Total non-current liabilities FEREBEEETE (2,499)
Total current liabilities me B EEE (13,438)
Equity s 117,333
Revenue Y 28 5
Loss for the period HNEE (418)
Other comprehensive income EHfh2mE KA -
Total comprehensive loss ZHEEEBE (418)
Dividends received from the associates B U A R AR A -
Reconciled to the group’s interests in the associate 7% &= B A B 4 N T) 2 4 25 ¥I B
Gross amounts of net assets of the associate BERNABEEFEERS 117,333
Group's effective interest $%l2ﬁ5§ﬁ%§ i 35%
Group's share of net assets of the associate REBEORHE ARIEEFE 41,067
Goodwill EES 453
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial FEMBREx REEE

statements 41,520
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19. GOODWILL 19. BHE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
At cost less accumulated ERERZHREEE
impairment losses
At beginning of the reporting period R ERE ) 116,971 116,971
Impairment losses REEE (116,971) =
At end of the reporting period RIRE IR - 116,971
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is FREBASHNENEESREEAEEES
allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs") for EXBEMN(REELSSEAN]) 2 BEBS w0
impairment test as follows: T
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEETF
Note HK$’'000 HK$’000
Hifat BT T BT T
CGUs HEEEEN
Ocean fishing business BB ER (i) 116,971 116,971
Cost A 116,971 116,971
2020
—ETF
Note HK$'000
FtzF BT
CGUs HEELEN
Ocean fishing business NSDERTEC (116,971) =
Accumulated impairment losses 2 BEEE (116,971) =
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BE—_E-_—F=A=+—HItFE
19. GOODWILL (continued) 19. BHB(E
2021 2020
B —F —ETF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Btat BET T BEET T
CGUs HEELEN
Ocean fishing business USDE L E (i) - 116,971
Net book value BRMEFE - 116,971

Impairment test for goodwill

Impai
value

rment assessment is carried out by determining the
in use of the cash-generating unit. The value in use is

represented by the net present value of future forecast net

cash i

nflows of the cash generating unit which is determined

on the basis of the discounted cashflow model.

(i)

Ocean fishing business

For ocean fishing business, management calculates
value-in-use based on discounted cash flow
calculations. The discounted cash flow calculations use
cash flow projections developed based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group
covering a five-year period, with growth rate of revenue
of 0% (2020: 0% to 5%). Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using an estimated zero
annual growth rate. The discount rate used is pre-tax,
which equals to the weighted average costs of capital
of 19.20% (2020: 13.64%), is used to determine the
discount factor under the discounted cash flow. As
a result of the outbreak of the coronavirus disease
2019 (“COVID-19"), the Group's ocean fishing
business operation have been adversely affected by
the pandemic and the travel restrictions imposed
by the Republic of Mozambique, one of the key
assumption had changed significantly, the recoverable
amounts have fallen below the carrying value of the
cash generating units. The results of tests undertaken
as at 31 March 2021 indicated full impairment were
necessary.
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20. INVENTORIES 20. £E
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Raw Materials E R _ _
Work in Progress TR - =
Finished goods BUAK TR - 278
— 278
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. BUYIRRR H b B

2020
—E-TF
Note HK$'000
HteE BETIT

Trade receivables from third HE =AW EWERR
parties 642,378 413,238
Less: loss allowance S R E B (ii) (181,205) (6,633)
Net trade receivables R FFE (i) 461,173 406,605

Other receivables H i EW IR

Prepayments T FRIR 1,469 5,029
Advance payment to suppliers A L FE P 2N 3008 (iii) 517,301 626,634
Deposits b 10,782 9,323
Other receivables i B R 31,542 29,624
Other tax recoverable H A AT U (B 5 I8 - 4,261
561,094 674,871
Less: loss allowance B RS (2,179) -
Net other receivables H b e BRFOFE 558,915 674,871
1,020,088 1,081,476
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21.

140

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

()

(i)

Aging of trade receivables

The Group grants credit term ranging from 30 days to
90 days to its customers upon the delivery of products
or when the services are rendered and invoices are
issued under supply chain management services
business and ocean fishing business. The aging of trade
receivables (net of loss allowances) based on invoice
date is as follows:

21.

FE W Bl R B EL At R WK (48

() YRRz IRER

BB E R IR X MBI R
BmE  AEERINE MR HERS
I % HERRE TEEF30H £90H
EER -REZBH27 2 RKIRN
(IR ERER) ZRREIT

2021 2020
=B —F —ECERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Less than 90 days 90HUA T~ 146,154 218,603
91 - 180 days 91£180H 37,712 99,029
181 — 270 days 181£270H 81,764 24,034
271 - 365 days 271%365H 79,657 43,277
Over 1 year —FLAE 115,886 21,662
461,173 406,605

Loss allowance for trade receivables (i) EWERRZBERE
2020
—ECEF
HK$’000
BETIT
At beginning of reporting period s =GR 6,633 564
Provision for loss allowance BB 178,032 6,069
Written off of trade receivables 1 55 FE U BR 5K (61) -
Disposal of subsidiary k=) =YNG] (3,401) =
Exchange realignment PEE 5, =X 2 =
At end of reporting period AR EHR 181,205 6,633
Included in the Group’s trade receivables REBREKESREHBEEREDAEY

balance are debtors with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$315,019,000 (2020: approximately
HK$188,002,000), which were past due at the end
of the reporting period but no provision for loss
allowances has been made as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the directors
believe that the amounts are fully recoverable.
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. BERERRREMERR(Z
(iii) Advance payment to suppliers (iii) mEEFEARKIE
The amounts represented payments made in advance to ZAIBEREEMEEERBN 2K
suppliers for purchase of goods. I8 o
22. LOANS RECEIVABLES 22. BEWER
2021 2020
—EB=—F —ECTE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BEET T
Loans to customers XFEER - 278
Accrued interest receivables FEUR e ST 7 B - 19
- 297
Other loan HEMER 38,095 60,000
Accrued interest receivables FEU FESTFI B 1,541 5,940
39,636 65,940
Loan to non-controlling shareholder IR AR AR S E 3K 6,762 6,311
Accrued interest receivables FE UL FEET R B, 600 561
7,362 6,872
46,998 73,109
Impairment allowance on individual B R AR ER
assessment (24,709) (297)
22,289 72,812
Analysed as: DT
Non-current assets EmBEE 13,060 =
Current assets BB E 9,229 72,812
22,289 72,812

AEBEZREBEH ARG E N REEER 75
K EERRRERE - BRETEBRER
HRERR

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding loans receivable to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management.
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22.

142

LOANS RECEIVABLES (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s loans
receivable from other loan which arise from loan to
independent third party, is denominated in Renminbi. The
interest rate is 6.5% per annum.

The Group’s loans receivable from customers which arise from
money lending business of providing personal loans in Hong
Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The credit quality analysis of the loans receivable is as
follows:

22. EWER(E)

HE_ZT-_—F=A=+—"8 KA&EBEWK
HEMmEFNERE TEBLE = mMESE "N
AREAE  FFEE6.5% °

AEBERBBRELAEROREREHE
ERREEFERAERE-

RRERHNEELEDTMT

2021 2020
—B-—F —E-FTF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Neither past due nor impaired 37 #8260 B 7 AR ORU(E
— Unsecured — A - 71,732
— Secured —FHEH 7,362 =
Less than 1 month past due BHEITN R —1E A - =
1 to 3 months past due A —=={8A - -
Over 3 months past due wEAEA=E A 39,636 1,377
46,998 73,109
Impairment B (24,709) (297)
22,289 72,812

Note: Represents the gross amount of individually impaired loans
receivable for which impairment loss has been provided
partially or in full as at year end date.

Receivable that was neither past due nor impaired related to
a non-controlling shareholder of the Group’s subsidiary for
whom there was no recent history of default, the other loan
is secured by a charge of the shareholdings in Lianyungang
Anni Ocean Fishing Co Ltd.

As at 31 March 2021, other loans receivable of
HK$39,636,000 was individually impaired. The amount of the
provision was HK$24,709,000 as at 31 March 2021. This was
related to an independent third party for whom the directors
are of the view that only a portion of the receivable was
expected to be recovered. As at 31 March 2021, no collateral
was held by the Group for the impaired loans receivable.
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23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 23. RITEBRERS
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprises: (a) BELBRLEEYERE:
2021 2020
—E-—F —EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Cash at bank and in hand RITEFHERE 9,656 2,924
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on RTINS HRBE BEITERN =T B BEL
daily bank deposit rates. AE o
(b) Cash flow information — Reconciliation of (b) BEREN —BEESEYHER

financing liabilities

Bank Bank Other
borrowing borrowing borrowings Loan from Loan from Corporate Lease
-secured - unsecured -secured  Shareholder  Corporations bonds liabilities Total
HTRE AfpfeE
#1 -BER -RER R AREH ARfES HEaR ait

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000
AETT  AFn A¥tn BMEn BRTR BT BT EBTR

Financial liabilities RZE-N5MA-A

asat 1 April 2019 MEEERE 28953 - 70,000 - - 10,623 - 109,576
Proceeds from borrowings B HETE 10,000 E7)] 40,400 37,700 27911 - = 116,333
Repayment from borrowings BEER (1,000) - (4,000) - (23,056) - = (28,056)
Interest paid BfIE - - - - - (864) - (864)
Capital element of lease HESNERTS

rentals period - - - = = = (29) (29
Other changes: AfhEE -
Interest expenses HER% - - - - - 1373 - 1373
Exchange realignment 38 (1,286) - - - - - - (1,286)
Increase in lease liabilities from FARTUHRE

entering into new leases MEMEEEE

during the year - - - - - - 786 786
Financing liabilties RZE-FE=A=1-HY

as at 31 March 2020 HERR 36,667 m 106,400 37,700 4,855 11,132 757 197,833
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23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued)
(b)

RITHEBRRRE(F
(b) BEREM-BMESBEHRR(E)

23.

Cash flow information — Reconciliation of

financing liabilities (continued)

Financing liabilities as at

Bank
borrowing
- secured

&A1

HK§'000
ARt

RZZ-F5MA-A

Bank
borrowing
- unsecured
RITEE
-EHR
HK$'000
BT

Other
borrowings
- secured
HfeE
-HER
HK$'000
BRI

Loan from
Shareholder

RREH
HKS'000
ANTR

Loan from
Corporations

Corporate
bonds

AAEH
HKS'000
BRTT

AFRE
HKS'000
BRTR

Lease

liabilities E]

BRAE /it

HKS'000
AT

HKS'000
BRTR

1 April 2020 HREBE 36,667 m 106,400 37,700 4,855 11,132 757 197,833
Proceeds from borrowings B HETE 65,476 - 35,714 1,856 19,724 - - 122,770
Repayment to borrowings [EREN (17,321) (345) (8,536) - (6,002) - - (32,204)
Conversions of debts to capital ~ EREFEZRA - - - - (18,924) - - (18,924)
Redemption of corporate bond HBING [0 - - - - - (5,970) - (5,970)
Interest paid ERfIE - - - - - (619) - (619)
Disposal to third parties HERE=F (21,348) - (18,000) - - - - (39,348)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ~ EEHHERHSH - - - - - - (600) (600)
Other changes: A5

Iterest expenses HER - - - - - 987 40 1,027
Exchange realignment BN 1,348 B - - 347 - - 1,718

Financing liabilties RZEZ-F=A=1-A
as at 31 March 2021 HEEEE 64,822 - 115,578 39,556 - 5,530 197 25,683

=k =k
24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. BANRERRAMENRK

2021 2020
—E=—F —EEF
Note HK$000 HK$'000
KfaF BT T BETIT
Trade payables FETEBRFX (i) 31,357 22,674
Accruals [EETE R 23,815 19,231
Contract liabilities aHEaE (ii) 2,133 =
Other tax payables H b R R IR 6,369 6,985
Due to directors B EEIE 1,101 1,101
Due to shareholder FE R B R IE 250 450
Other payables H MR 97,067 113,006
162,092 163,447
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 24, ERNERIRREMESRE
(i) Aging of trade payables (i) EAERRZIERER
At the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of RERE IR - ERNEZEB 2 ENERR
the trade payables based on invoice date is as follows: ZERE AT -
2021 2020
—E-—F —TE-TF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Less than 90 days 90H AT - -
91 — 180 days 912180H 7,064 5,669
181 — 270 days 1812270H - 17,005
271 — 365 days 2712365H 24,293 =
31,357 22,674
(i) Contract liabilities (i) EWEE
Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 March BE_ T -_—F=ZA=+—HIt#F
2021 that was included in the contract liability balance B REVFTASHNABEESHRZEER
at the beginning of the year amounted to nil (2020: W2k AZE(ZZF =24 :37,220,000)°
37,220,000). The Group expects to deliver the goods to AEBBRINE R ABITZER —
satisfy the remaining performance obligations of these FHIUA TR ENBECRBORE-

contract liabilities within one year or less.

25. BORROWINGS 25. &8
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
KtaE BT T BT T
Loan from financial institution SREBER (i), (i)

Bank borrowing — secured RITEE —AHEMA 64,822 36,667
Bank borrowing — unsecured RITIEE — EHER - 322
Other borrowing — secured HEmEE —HHE# (v) 115,578 106,400

Loan from a shareholder BRRER (iif)
Other borrowing — unsecured H g E — Mg 39,556 37,700

Loan from corporations AEER (iv)
Other borrowing — unsecured Hitnfg & — & - 4,855

219,956 185,944
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BE_T

25.

146

——F=-A=t—HLFE

BORROWINGS (continued)

The borrowings are repayable as follows:

25.

B(E
fEENREESTMOT

2021 2020
—E-—fF ZEETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETIT
On demand or within 1 year BRENRS1FER 141,049 127,133
After 1 and within 2 years 1FEBNM2ENA 16,561 48,811
After 2 and within 3 years 25 1& M3FR 62,346 10,000
219,956 185,944
Portion of loan that are due for repayment —FZF|HEEEBE
after one year but contain a repayment BBREZBIERNERI D
on demand clause (shown under current  (FIAGRBIAE)
liabilities) - -
Amount due for settlement within 12 + @A RNDEEE 2 38
months (shown under current liabilities) BIARBBaE) 141,049 127,133

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

(i)  The effective interest rate on the loan from financial
institution during the year ended 31 March 2021 was
approximately ranging from 7.66% to 16.07% per
annum (2020: approximately ranging from 6% to
23.57% per annum).

(i) The Group’'s loan from financial institution of

HK$180,400,000 were secured by (i) personal

guarantee by directors and a shareholder of the Group

and a subsidiary’s director, (ii) corporate guarantee by a

subsidiary, (iii) pledged properties owned by a business

partner and pledged vessels under construction in
progress of the Group with carrying amounts of

HK$96,437,500 and HK$65,238,095 respectively, and

(iv) pledged shares of three subsidiaries.
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25. BORROWINGS (continued) 25. EE (&)

(iii) Loan from shareholder was unsecured. The effective iy BRERAEEF HE_T_——F=
interest rate on the loan from shareholder during the A=1+—HBLIFE BREEFNERSF
year ended 31 March 2021 was approximately 7.76% A BN FRTTEN( —F = T F:
per annum (2020: 6.95%). 6.95%)°

(iv) Loan from corporations were interest-free and (iv) ARERAERENREMLE -
unsecured.

(v)  The loan from financial institution — other borrowing- vy HEZZE-_—F=A=1+—H8 £p@#
secured included an amount of HK$88,400,000, which BEX-—HEMEE-—FAERARE —F
was matured and overdue as at 31 March 2021. The 75 #88,400,0007T ) & 3% - W & B HA
Group had discussion with the lender and are arranging g Hp - A E IFELE 5 7] B & B
the renewal of the borrowing. EHo

26. DEFERRED INCOME 26. EFZEWA
2021 2020
—EB——F —E T
HK$000 HK$'000

PRC government subsidy income Fh B B A A B A BET T BT

Opening book amount Y BRI (B 55,813 48,174

Additions NE - 10,667

Transfer to statement of A ZHRER

comprehensive income (950) (887)

Exchange realignment P& EE 3,987 (2,1471)

Closing book amount HAZRBR (A 58,850 55,813

During the year ended 2021 and 2020, the Group received REBR B FR_ZT_ZTFEEET

government subsidy from various PRC government authorities @) o B AT M B f B A S 3 S i i &

in relation to support ocean fishing business. 7% o
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27. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLES

27. BNRAKE

Lianyungang

Anni
BEBEBZRE
HK$'000
BT
(Note a)
(Hfata)
At 1 April 2019 RZZE—NFMA—H 15,739
Reclassified to convertible bonds and convertible B EERMERES R BRRESHE
bonds reserve
— liabilities portion —BEHD -
— equity portion — D =
Gain on change in fair value ANEEES K (4,539)
At 31 March 2020 R-B-ZEF=A=+—H 11,200
Reclassified to convertible bonds and convertible EF DR RRES AR ESEE
bonds reserve
— liabilities portion —BEDBD =
— equity portion b Saib) =
Loss on change in fair value NEEEZH K 3425
At 31 March 2021 R=-BE=-—F=H=+—H 14,629
Analysed for reporting purposes as: mEE BT
2020
—ETF
HK$’000
BT
Current liabilities mEBaE - -
Non-current liabilities EmEBBEE 14,629 11,200
Total st 14,629 11,200
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27.

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLES
(continued)

Notes:

The initial considerations are HK$68,930,000 in cash upon
completion and principal amount of HK$16,209,440 of convertible
bonds in accordance with the sale and purchase agreement for the
acquisition of Lianyungang Annie Ocean Fishing Co., Ltd. in the year
end 31 March 2019.

The convertible bond (“CBI”) with principal amount of
HK$16,209,440 was issued to the Vendors at completion date of
acquisition and the CB | had cancelled the fulfilment requirement of
the agreed Guaranteed Profits and revised the conversion condition
of the convertible bond in the Relevant Period. The convertible
bond were pledged by the vendors to the Group as a security.
The consideration is revalued to a fair value of approximately
HK$14,629,000 at 31 March 2021 (2020:HK$11,200,000) and a fair
value loss of HK$3,429,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the
year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: gain HK$4,539,000).

The fair value of the contingent consideration payables as at 31
March 2021 and 2020 were measured using a discounted rate of
10.8% and 20.3% per annum,
model.

respectively, under black scholes

The fair value of the contingent consideration payables were
determined by the Directors with reference to the valuation at 31
March 2021 carried out by Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited.

Due to the effect of COVID-19, the Relevant Period has been
postponed, as such the amount of contingent consideration payables
has been reclassified as non-current liabilities.

27.
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Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-ZE - F=-A=1+—HILEE

FENRARNKE(E)

Bz -

RE-_Z-—NE=ZA=Z+—"BREFEZBELE
RFBMBBERARZEENGE RNThEL
K18 AR £ 5 168,930,0007T K KA & 58 A bl
16,209,4407T 2 FJ A% & & -

N4 58 A7 #16,209,4407T 2 Al # B (E & ([ 7]
BRESE ] RREXKBHETTES M
ARRES —EHRBBEEUE T HOENFIBER
EMIERT A N A R E S SR o]
BRESFAESIERTAEEERAER - N2
——FZA=t+—A - REEHAERFELBE
14,629,0007T (=Z == 4 : ##11,200,0007T )
&ﬁifyffi A=+—BLEEEREBZES
F AR 2 AT EE B EIE A 13,429,0007T
(ZZE=ZF : 5 BH%4,539,0007T ) °

R=F=—ER-B-FE=A={ AR
PRI 2 AT ERBH RIS B AR
WEFZF10.8% K%20.3%5 2 °

%Hﬁ%ﬁﬁzﬂiﬁﬂm§$ﬁpﬁﬂﬁﬁé
ABRARR -_E-—F=A=+—HETZMH
BEE-

REERARBEZE MR T ARBME BULE

NEXAREZHEERARDEEEFTOERIER
HEE-
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28. CORPORATE BONDS

28. DEIESH

The carrying amount of corporate bonds recognised at the REEHRERZ AREFREETER
end of the reporting period was calculated as follows: T

Unsecured

corporate

bonds

EIKM DT ES

HK$'000

BT

At 1 April 2019 RZZE—NEFMA—H 10,623

Interest paid [EANEYESS (864)

Effective interest expenses BRI B 1,373

At 31 March 2020 R-ZB-ZEF=A=+—H 11,132

Interest paid BAF A (619)

Redemption of corporate bonds EEAREH (5,970)

Effective interest expenses ERF SR 987

At 31 March 2021 R-—E-_—F=A=+—H 5,530
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28. CORPORATE BONDS (continued) AEEH(E)
2021 2020
=F=—F =epeariE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Current liabilities mEIEE 5,530 11,132
Non-current liabilities EmBEE - -
5,530 11,132

The Group issued two unsecured corporate bonds with
aggregate principal amount of HK$11,500,000, carrying
interest at the rate of 7% and 8% per annum payable
quarterly for a term of 2 years from the date of issue of the
bonds. The effective interest rate is 9.96% (2020: 12.68%)
per annum.

On initial recognition and subsequent measurements, the
Directors consider that the principal amount of corporate
bonds approximate to its fair value.

For both the principal term of the 7% bonds and 8% bonds,
the Group has the right to redeem the outstanding principal
amount at agreed time before the optional redemption
date, with at least 10 clear business days written notice (the
“Redemption Right”), but for the bondholder of the principal
term of 8% bonds, they has no right to require the Company
to redeem the corporate bonds.

The balance of HK$4,530,000 as at 31 March 2021 was
matured and overdue and the remaining HK$1,000,000
was due subsequently after the year end date. The Group
have discussed and arranged settlement schedule with the
bondholders.

AEEBITMEAR T B AE%11,500,000
T2 EERRGMES - BI%7% Kk8% .2 F 7
K BREELN FHRESETAERE
TR - B FFIE 59.96% (T F :
12.68%)°

RS ERRERTER ESRRAFE
HZATREEENFEES -

AEBEBRNEZEEOEANZE TR
B BZBEELHEAREXBZEMBNED
MABE LT % EFR8%BEF 2 A (&
Cl#]) B8%EFERIFRZEFFHBAE
BERANRFBEILNRES

& %A 5B ¥4,530,000H R RIESFE R =
T-—F=A=+—HeHHrai m&
T 75 #1,000,0007T B A B & 75 INME F 4512
EHR o AEE FEREESF TR R LHER A
AR -
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. BA
Note No. of shares HK$'000
Kzt R EE BT T
Authorised: EE
At 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021, R-ZE-TF=A=+—HEK
ordinary share of HK$0.01 each —E-—%=R=+—H"
FREEBE0.01 AL ER 20,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAE:
At 1 April 2019 and REZB-hEMNA-BR
31 March 2020, “Z-BF=A=+-H-
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEBK.ITHERE 4,225,960,179 42,260
Shares issued upon subscription RIZZZE+LARAREHETZ (i)
in July 2020 e 80,000,000 800
Shares issued upon subscription in RZE-EF+ARARE%ETZ (ii)
October 2020 hn 50,000,000 500
Shares issued upon conversion of debts ~ RZZ=FF + = A FEHRER (i)
in December 2020 BIIZRH 157,696,000 1,577
Shares issued upon subscription RZZE-ZTF+-ARRE (iv)
in December 2020 BT MM 200,000,000 2,000
Shares issued upon placing RUER & AR R EE1T2 (v)
in acquisition in an associate dn) 200,000,000 2,000
At 31 March 2021, ordinary shares of R=-ZE-_—F=A=+—-H 8K
HK$0.01 each EEB®.0ITHEER 4,913,656,179 49,137
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note:

@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

In July 2020, a total of 80,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each were issued by way of subscription to two independent
investors at a price of HK$0.13 per share. The market value
per share at the completion date of the placing was HK$0.15
and HK$0.17 respectively. The Company raised approximately
HK$10,400,000 before expenses, for general working capital
of the Group.

In October 2020, a total of 50,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued by way of subscription to
one independent investor at a price of HK$0.10 per share.
The market value per share at the completion date of the
Placing was HK$0.12. The Company raised approximately
HK$5,000,000 before expenses, for general working capital of
the Group.

In December 2020, a total of 157,696,000 ordinary shares
each were issued by way of placing to three independent
creditors in forms of converting the debt to ordinary shares as
settlement at a price of HK$0.12 per share. The market value
per share at the completion date of the placing was HK$0.18.
The Company raised approximately HK$18,923,520 before
expenses, for general working capital of the Group.

In December 2020, a total of 200,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued by way of subscription to
one independent investor at a price of HK$0.12 per share.
The market value per share at the completion date of the
placing was HK$0.2. The Company raised approximately
HK$24,000,000 before expenses, for general working capital
of the Group.

In March 2021, a total of 200,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued way of placing to one independent
investor in purpose of acquisition of 35% equity interest in an
associate at a price of HK$0.18 per share. The market value
per share at the completion date of the placing was HK$0.17.

All shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the
existing shares in all respects.

29.
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A (&)

Ffat

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

M=ZZE=ZF+ A 4 ££80,000,0000% &
RAKIO T ZEBRE BBZERE
BEONBTTZ B TREB L IREERE-
REEZKBH SRMED N ABSE
0.157C FB #0177 - A A R R A B 1
10,400,000t (KREHHE) BIEAEE 2
—MREEES-

R=ZF=_ZFF+ A & $50,000,0008% &
BAE#0.01L 2 & Lﬁxaﬁﬂ&tﬂxﬁéﬁ%‘
0107 Z (B8 T — R B EE R - WL

ExR B ERMEABE012TL AR
A& &£ 478 %5,000,0007t (K&HFHY) - B
EAGEE —MEEES-

RZZTEZTF+= A 4 %£157,696,000
BEEBEABEEERAEER X
BBRERBEONRTZBREE T =4
BUREEMBET - REETKBEH &
BRHMEABEIST AR EELNBE
18,923,5207t (KRETHEZ) - AEAREE 2
—REBES-

RZZEZTF+=F & %200,000,0008%
BBz T BERE MBEERE
OB T —RBUREERE
REEZK B E FRMERBE2T -
AN B & & 47 #24,000,0007T (&6
X)) REAEBZ —REEED -

R=ZT=—%=H & +200,000,0008 &
B #0.010 2 X Lﬁxaﬁﬂhzﬂx/%ﬁ%
0. 18T ZEBIRRE T — BB LZEE M
17+ DA — RRESE 8 A )2 35% A% 48 © AR
EXKAE BRMEARBK0TT.

FARTHOAERPEREGRNES T EH
ERCICES: v
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30.

== &= = HIEEE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 18 October 2011. The purpose of the share
option scheme is to enable the directors of the Company, at
their discretion, to recognise and motivate the contribution
of the employees of the Group and to provide incentives
and help the Group in retaining its existing employees and
recruiting additional employees and to provide them with a
direct economic interest in attaining the long-term business
objectives of the Group.

Eligible participants include any employees, consultants,
suppliers or customers of the Company and its subsidiaries,
including any independent non-executive directors of the
Company. The Scheme became effective on 18 October 2011
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme, upon their
exercise may not be in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum number
of shares issuable to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period up to the date of grant, is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at that
date of grant. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting. As at 31 March 2021, 491,365,618 shares (2020:
422,596,018 shares) of the Company, representing 10%
(2020: 10%) of its issued capital, are available for issue under
the Scheme.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
in writing within 7 days from the date of the offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 per option in
total by the grantee. Any share option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during
a period to be notified by the board of directors to an eligible
participant but may not be exercised after the expiry of 10
years from the date of grant of the share option but subject
to the early termination of the Scheme.

30.
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30.

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
board of directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer
of the option, which must be a business day, (ii) the average
of the closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the option,
(iii) the average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the ten business days immediately preceding the date of offer
of the option, and (iv) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares on the date of offer.

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, no share
options had been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Scheme. There were no share options outstanding
as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”). The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
in provident fund managed by independent trustee. Under
the MPF Scheme, the Group and each of the employees
make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Legislation. Both the employer’s and the
employees’ monthly contributions are subject to a cap of
HK$1,500.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes covering its PRC employees.
The schemes are administered by the relevant government
authorities which undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries.

During the year, the amount of employer’s contributions
made by the Group to the pensions for continuing operations
was approximately HK$397,000 (2020: HK$507,000).

30.

31.
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BT E(E
BREZTEERESSETE  BXTEE
TRERTNIERSE : ()VARRBRORER
BELER(AREXR)EBMEARE
RFFRZTE © (AR EIRD BERBAE
REZEARMAMEEXA EHIAEARE
PR EF U THAE ¢ iA R R B E
BREROERMTEZXE EHIAE
BRERARFHERTE  RiVARFRK
DRBERERLE R ZEE-

HE T —FRp T -TFE=A=+—H
WEFE - WEAREREREZTEEER
T FERAR R —F R =%
—EF=A=+—8 WEEFIKRTEZE
PRHE o

BB S
REBEDRHEERBERZEE2 10584
MABE([BESFE ) -RESFTE
ZEERBUXTAEERz B YRR
B -RERBESFE AEEEZEE S 7
BEZEEEREF 5% 2 HRCERE R oA
MRESEN) BEEREESB 2T AHEK
BN HBIEB 1,500 2 LR °

AEBWHEME AR TESTEEESESM
TEBRMNEKET 8 - oAt 8 B AR BB AT #BFI
BT ARAEETENBARZBIRE R
RIERAKEE 2 RINENEE -

RER - ANEE A E AR EELEEH®
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32.

156

DEFERRED TAXATION 32. EEMIE
Deferred tax liability EEHIEE
The following is the deferred tax liability recognised by the REEBRRNFERRZIELEFTEE A K H &
Group and movements thereon during the year: EJ N
Waive of
other payable
RERHE
BE A+ R I8
At 1 April 2020 R _T_ZTFMA—H -
Charge to profit or loss N BTl 4,167
At 31 March 2021 R-_ZE_—F=A=t+—H 4,167

Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from

DT EEEE 2 RBERIBELENHEE

2020

—T_TF

HK$'000

BT

Deductible temporary differences A HUR Ry = R - 2,888
Tax losses HIAEE 93,301 149,794
At end of the reporting period REREHR 93,301 152,682

At 31 March 2021, tax losses of HK$91,288,000 (2020:
HK$135,926,000) arising in Hong Kong have no expiry date
under current tax legislation. The tax losses of HK$2,013,000
(2020: HK$13,869,000) arising in the PRC can be used
to set off against future taxable profits of the respective
subsidiaries for a maximum of 5 years. The Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of these tax losses
and deductible temporary differences because it is uncertain
that future taxable profits will be available against which the
Group can utilise the benefits therefrom.
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32.

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from
(continued)

The unrecognised tax losses arising in the PRC at the end
of the reporting period which can be offset against future
taxable profits of the respective subsidiaries for a maximum
of 5 years will expire as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mAEUHRERME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021

AL (4
DT ERELE 2 ARRBELEREE(F)

REBRIMEBRETBES 2 RFERHIR
ERE B EERME AR RS KK EF
ZIERTOEA - ASHIA T HARRE W -

2021 2020
B —F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

Year of expiry BN
2020 —E-TF - 413
2021 B4 - 31
2022 —E-—fF 14 12,238
2023 —Eo=F 36 34
2024 —EOF 1,223 1,153
2025 —E-hF 740 -
2,013 13,869

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC. In the opinion of the directors, it is
probable that any undistributed profits are expected to be
retained in the PRC subsidiaries and not to be remitted out of
the PRC in the foreseeable future. The estimated withholding
tax effects on the distribution of retained profits of these
PRC subsidiaries were Nil (2020: Nil). In addition, no deferred
tax has been recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s associates
established in the PRC as the deferred tax impact on these
unremitted earnings was insignificant.

R_ZE-_—FR-_ZT_FTF=A=+—8"

WERAEERPEK 2 BRG] ZAKE
HARZ ERENFRERELERHIE - EER
A PAT] BAR SRAF ] AR 3 B i 1) T8 HA 7 &

FRENEBARRBEETSE LR ZEF
BIHI B A R 2R B a F 5 R Z [T B S
ZRT(ZZTZFF : T) - BH HRAE
B Bk S 2 B N B 2 R PE AR 2 e
HﬁmﬁZLLmE%;H$%lﬁﬁit
HE RUERZEAEDLZBAEREL
TiIE
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33. COMMITMENTS

(@) Commitments under operating leases - the Group

as lessee

The Group leases certain premises under operating
lease commitments. Leases for premises are negotiated

for terms of 1 year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

Within one year

33.

i
(a) RMEMNAE-FREEREEA

AEERBEEHOARERETY
X - MEBO I EEBE TR -

RIEIR - AEERBEN AT HEHE S
TH AT LA T B 1 B B 9 R SR SR AR 40
NIRRT -

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT

- 976

(b) Commitments under operating leases — the Group

as lessor

The property held for rental purpose have committed
leases for the next 5 months for the year ended 31

March 2020.

Minimum lease payments receivables on leases are as

(b) REHERE-FREEREEA

BHE_Z_TF=A=+—H #HER
ERRMMEDAFZAREANA

-

BEREENRERERENKDT

follows:
2020
—TE-TF
HK$'000
BT T
Within one year R—FRN - 165
In the second year NE—F - -
- 165
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33. COMMITMENTS (continued) 33. AE(E
(c) Capital Commitments () EREE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTEF
HK$000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
— Capital expenditure contracted for  — FtUEWE - FRE L RE
but not provided in the consolidated ERIAMERRERE T
financial statements in respect of the R BENE AR
acquisition of property, plant and
equipment 29,253 207,724
— Capital contribution to investment in — RHIBATREZ HE
subsidiaries 205,873 221,030

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a)

34. BBLEXRS
(a) BRESSAMBHRELMBINE
2R5 /AR R AEEREY
FA T TR

In addition to the transactions/information
disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, during the year, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties:

2021 2020
—E-—-F ZETF
Related party relationship Nature of transaction Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
B A & REME Hrat BYETT BT
Key management personnel Salaries, allowances and
(other than directors) benefits in kind and
FEEBAB (EEKRIN contribution to defined
contribution schemes
e EZRREMAEMAE
HGTE 2 K 810 810
A shareholder Interest expenses
—HRR FERHZ 3,140 2,622
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

35. HEKBAR

160

On 31 August 2020, the Group entered into a disposal
agreement (the “Btpro Disposal”) with an independent
third party, pursuant to which, the Group (i) disposed
of its 100% equity interest in Btpro Holdings Limited
(“Btpro”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Btpro Group”);
and (ii) assigned the shareholder’s loan of approximately
HK$97,615,000 in full owing from Btpro to the Group
for a cash consideration of US$1.

The Btpro Disposal was completed on 31 August 2020,
The major classes of assets and liabilities of Btpro as
at the completion date of the Btpro Disposal were as

R-B-—TENA=1+—8 A&EEHE
— BB E = F ] & % ([ Btpro
HEZE]) Bt AEBOHEER
RARZ2EN B 2AFBtpro Holdings
Limited ([ Btpro ) & E i B A &) (£ 18
[BtprofE @ ]) Z100%8% # : K(ii)i&
Btprot R 2 IR H B R 4 B ¥
97,615,000t BHBEEAEE RE
REA1ZETT -

Btprod EFBE R _ZE_ZF N\ A
=+ —H5%EMK - MBtproti & EH K
HES - Btprox BEEKBEZEEZHEA

follows: HymT -
HK$'000
BT
Property, plant and equipment VI S R 21
Trade and other receivables R 50 B SRR % LA E Mk 3R 26,118
Bank balances and cash WITHRBRIRE 17
Trade and other payables JE AT BR SR K% EL At JE 5 3K (1,480)
Borrowings BE (21,348)
Amount due to the Group FER A& B 50IE (97,615)
(94,287)
Assignment of amount due to the Group i g N AN EE B FR0R 97,615
3,328
Release of cumulative exchange differences on MEGIINEREE 2 RFTER E58
translation of foreign operations # [o] 18,854
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HEMBARZEE (22,182)
Satisfied by: ATA G REE
Cash bizhca —*
Net cash outflow arising on the disposal is as follows: | & EIEE 4 7 30 47 B F5E S5
R
Consideration settled in cash NS EE2RE =
Bank balances and cash HECRITESR IR (17)
(17)
@ The negligible consideration has not been shown due to & BARAE  WRSRA] T 2EERE -

rounding.
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

On 30 September 2020, the Group entered into a
disposal agreement (the “Glory Wheel Disposal”)
with an independent third party, pursuant to which,
the Group (i) disposed of its 100% equity interest in
Glory Wheel Trading Limited (“Glory Wheel”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Glory Wheel Group”); and (ii) assigned

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mAEUHRERME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-ZE - F=-A=1+—HILEE

HEWBE AR (&

RZZB-_TFNA=1+H FEEE—
ZBIE=HEI HEHE( R
%%1@) Bt - NREBE()EEER AR

PREIZEEWNBARRBRESBRA
A ([ B&em ) REM B AR (578 [ KR
£ ) Z2100%HE - K(i)i&aim s
Z IR E R4 #16,974,0007C B H

the shareholder’s loan of approximately HK$16,974,000 HEAEER BERERIET-
in full owing from Glory Wheel to the Group for a cash

consideration of US$1.

BRBHEFTHER_T_ZTFNA
=tEER -REBLEFRAH &
W BEMBEZTRERIEIINT:

The Glory Wheel Disposal was completed on 30
September 2020. The major classes of assets and
liabilities of Glory Wheel as at the completion date of
the Glory Wheel Disposal were as follows:

HK$'000
BT
Investment property wEY 19,178
Trade and other receivables JFE U5 B SR R L A R U K 19
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRE 73
Borrowings BTE (18,000)
Trade and other payables JE 1<% B 35K K L i FE 1 5K (4,495)
Amount due to the Group JE S AR & B 5778 (16,974)
(20,199)
Assignment of amount due to the Group B2 E A5 K £ B K08 16,974
(3,225)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary BB AR 2 W 3,225
Satisfied by: ATA G XEE
Cash B =
Net cash outflow arising on the disposal is as follows: & =18z 4 7 I8 € i H ) F 28 5 5]
(N
Consideration settled in cash NERSEE 2RE =
Bank balances and cash disposed HEZRITESREIES (73)
(73)
& The negligible consideration has not been shown due to & HRAE  WARFIRA T RBKE-

rounding.
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BE_T

36.

162

——F=-A=t—HLFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATION
Disposal of Glory Wheel Trading Limited

On 30 September 2020, the Group entered into a
disposal agreement (the “Glory Wheel Disposal”) with an
independent third party pursuant to which the Group sold
the entire equity interest of Glory Wheel Trading Limited and
its subsidiaries (collectively known as “Glory Wheel”), which
is engaged in the money lending and investment property
business, at a consideration of US$1 (the “Disposal”). Upon
completion of the Disposal, the Group no longer has any
equity interest in Glory Wheel.

Management considers that following the Disposal, the
Group’s control over Glory Wheel had been discontinued and
thereby constituted discontinued operations. Accordingly,
certain comparative figures in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income have been re-presented to
separately reflect the results of the continuing operations
and discontinued operations. The results of the discontinued
operations for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 have
been analysed as follows:

36.
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36. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 36. CRIEER(E)
Disposal of Glory Wheel Trading Limited (continued) HERBREZTRAR(E)
(i)  Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued (i) BEEStZERIEERERZF (B
operations contributed by Glory Wheel =)
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEETIT
Revenue W25 20 123
Cost of services rendered and cost of  FTIR ARG 2 i 24~ &
goods sold HE B mZ AR - =
20 123
Other income H g A 132 264
Administrative expenses THHRAX (495) (1,276)
Net reversal of/(impairment loss) for loan J& U & 7% & 7| 8. # ;% %8
and interest receivables CREERE) 158 (297)
Finance cost B & A AR (2,484) (4,479)
Loss before taxation from BRIEEK 2R AIEER
discontinued operation (2,669) (5,665)
Income tax expenses FTEBiA - -
Loss after taxation from BRIEEK 2R AEER
discontinued operation (2,669) (5,665)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & BT B A A E 3,225 -
Income tax related to gain on disposal & B A T U5 M8RE 2 FTISH
of subsidiaries _ _
Net profit/(loss) attributable to ERIEEBRIEEFR,
discontinued operations (E518) F58 556 (5,665)
Profit/(loss) for the year from LTRALTELERIEERFER
discontinued operation =R (EE) -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company EATEBA 556 (5,665)
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36. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 36.

Disposal of Glory Wheel Trading Limited (continued)

(i) Net cash (outflows)/inflows attributable to
discontinued operations contributed by Glory

EBRIERE(E)

HERREZERA[(H)

(i) EBEWEMZERILEBRIERE (R
) TAEE

Wheel

2021 2020
B —F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Net cash flows REMmEFEE
Operating activities e E E (158) 2,005
Financing activities BMEEH 158 (2,000)
Total net cash inflows WM A FEER - 5
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. RERSENEMIA
The Group has classified its financial assets in the following AEEEHEEHEESBR/UTER
categories:

Financial Financial Financial
assets at assets at assets at
amortised cost FVPL FVOCI
2 488 68 R 2R ERER ZHEKEE
JIfRz RAVEIER EAFEIIR
EREE ZEMEE ZEMEE
Assets BE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 March 2021 R=-BE-_—H=H=+—H BT T BT T BT T
Trade and other receivables JTE U BR X K2 EL b E L 3k 1,020,088 - -
Loans receivables EWRE R 22,289 - -
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR LIRS 9,656 - -
1,052,033 - -
Financial Financial Financial
assets at assets at assets at
amortised cost FVPL FVOCI
FEREAM
birg: 31z ) DN BiRES FHEEE

FfRz RAFEIR  HAFEIR
THMEE ZERMEE ZEREE

Assets BE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 March 2020 R-_ZE-_ZTF=A=+—H BT T BT T BT T
Trade and other receivables JE LA B 3R K L A i LR 1,081,476 = =
Loans receivables U E R 72,812 = =
Bank balances and cash RITEBREIRSE 2,924 = =

1,157,212 - -
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37.

(continued)

The Group has classified its financial liabilities in the following

BERSBENERMTIA(E)

AEECKESRBENBANUTES

categories:

Financial
liabilities at Financial
amortised liabilities at
cost FVPL
RS A FEBBR
SRz  ERAFEIER
ol =R ZEe@mas
Liabilities =R HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 March 2021 R=-ZB-_—F=RA=+—H BT BT
Trade and other payables FE AT AR N B Ath FE - 3R 162,092 -
Borrowings Ba 219,956 -
Corporate Bonds NEIESH 5,530 -
Contingent consideration payables RS ARE - 14,629
Lease Liabilities HESE 197 -
Total At 387,775 14,629

Financial
liabilities at Financial
amortised liabilities at
cost FVPL
birg: Iz DN FiREs
Rz EATETIER
TRBE ZEmAatE
Liabilities Bfg HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 March 2020 R-ZZE_TF=A=+—H BT T BT T
Trade and other payables JE 1 BR R % EL At T 3K 163,447 =
Borrowings B 185,944 =
Corporate Bonds RNEMEH 11,132 =
Contingent consideration payables FERTSARE - 11,200
Lease Liabilities HEAE 757 =
Total CH 361,280 11,200
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
balances and cash, and borrowings. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise and maintain finance
for the Group's operations. The Group has various other
financial instruments such as loan receivables, trade and
other receivables and payables, which arise directly from its
business activities.

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been
described in Note 37.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The Group
does not have any written risk management policies and
guidelines. However, the board of directors generally adopts
conservative strategies on the Group’s risk management and
limits the Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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38. TEIEMEEBBERIE

AEBZIZSRIABRERITERRER
T UREE-REFERTAZIZENR
REEPERBAEEZ2EES - ASEH
BB UE K - R R e EL A MR A
RENRzHEMeRMTIA BEEREHEER
EE

ERSMTAZ S BRNARMEI7TEH -

AEEERTASIFZEIERRAEER
B MERERERBES AR AEEHE
TRARER  EEBERKLIES AW &
EERRHARBEZEAREERBARTHEE
VA 7 5 B D e 2 R fen P 22 K
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade receivables. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is limited
because the counterparties are banks for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

Other receivables/loan and interest receivables

For loan and interest receivables, the Group’s management
manages and analyses the credit risk for each of their new
and existing customers before standard payment terms
and conditions are offered. The management assesses the
collateral and credit quality of each customer based on
customer’s background information, financial position, past
experience and relevant factors. The Group also reviews from
time to time the financial position of the customers.

For all other instruments including other receivables, loan and
interest receivables, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition. The Group have assessed and concluded
that the risk of default rate for the other instruments are
steadily based on the Group assessment of the financial
health of the counterparties.

The Group do not provide guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk.

38.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 76% (2020:
32%) and 99% (2020: 97%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at 31
March 2021 and 2020:

38.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEVBHRERME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_T-_—F=-A=1+—HLFE

THEREEREREE(E)

=ERER(E)

FEWRE Z Rk
AEENEERBREEZERRFHNERBE
BYE ZRIRENEEMERITEN
FE -AY BEAKEERAENEEEEKR
EE SESEERBREAER - KRS
HiR BRESEREAENT6N(ZE=F
F32%)M99%(=—FE=-FTF : 97%) D 7
REAEEZARERAREF -

AEENRSTAHREEBENS B ERK
EHRNEREG ZBEARBERG
- -ARAEENBENEEBBELERIL K

RATRAEFHENEBREATEREER
Rt ERNBHRENBERRETIE—F R
DAKENTREPE -

TRE‘REEAEER S —FR T
ZE=ZA=1T—BNEERRIEKEZK
BEHEEEERNER

Effective Gross
expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BAHEH
EE=E IRE#A%E EREE
Year ended 31 March 2021 %
BE-Z--F=ZA=+—-HLFEE % Fr
Current BN EA - 146,154 -
Less than 90 days past due #HI90H LA 26.92% 51,603 13,891
91 — 180 days past due #HI91H=180H 38.88% 133,769 52,005
181 — 270 days past due ®HEI181HE270H 39.80% 132,314 52,657
271 — 365 days past due #HI271H%E365H 35.00% 139,997 49,004
Over 1 year past due BH—F M E 35.41% 38,541 13,648
642,378 181,205
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38.

170

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38. SREMRETEEERBE(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued) SEmEk(ZE)
Trade receivables (continued) FEWREZER(E)
Effective Gross
expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TR
EiE = IREAREE EiE R
Year ended 31 March 2020 % ‘000 ‘000
HE_Z_ZF=-A=+—HIEE % Tt Tt
Current BN ER = 218,603 =
Less than 90 days past due EHI90 A AT 1.02% 100,045 1,016
91 — 180 days past due #H91HZ£180H 6.10% 25,595 1,561
181 — 270 days past due #H181HZE270H 0.32% 41,372 131
271 — 365 days past due ®HEI271HE365H 5.00% 11,639 582
Over 1 year past due BE—F A E 20.91% 15,984 3,343
413,238 6,633

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over
the past years. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the period over which
the historic data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected
lives of the receivables.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38. ¢RIRAKEEEERBK(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued) SE Rk (Z)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade FREWE SERNEEREES N T :

receivables during the year is as follows:

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ECTEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Balance 1 April KU A—RB &8 6,633 564
Impairment losses recognised FABERZREEE
during the year 178,032 6,069
Written off of trade receivables JE U BR SRR SN (61) =
Disposal of subsidiary HENE AR (3,401) =
Exchange realignment FEE 5, & 2 _
Balance at 31 March R=A=+—RBZ&R 181,205 6,633
Interest rate risk FI 2= 3 B
The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk mainly RNEFBAZ ZESRMNERE T ERETLE
arises from the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest HBEEEZHTTETEEEETE - A
rate on the bank balances and borrowings. However, the AR TEGLEEYBEHTEE  SEE
management considers the Group’s exposure to such interest e ANEBZEBNERRERTA - BRI
rate risk is not significant as bank balances and borrowings R EEW W MERRRE DT

are all short-term in nature. No sensitivity analysis is prepared
as the fluctuation and impact is considered immaterial.

At 31 March 2021, it was estimated that a general increase R-EBE-—F=A=+—H " XL E
or decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all loss LA N FA1001EE 2 - FEFT A Hith vl & &)
other variables held constant, would increase or decrease the EREBEITEZBERT AEEBRTATA
Group's profit/(loss) before taxation by HK$74,000 (2020: A (18 ) #5318 A0 sk 5 2> 4974 #74,0007T
HK$7,000) (ZZEZFF : B%7,0007T)°
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38. 2REMEEEERBE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk REBE SRR
Management of the Group aims at maintaining sufficient AEBERERERSENZBITEHRNIR
level of bank balances and cash to finance the Group's & BAER XK REFIERIEHES -
operations and expected expansion. The Group’s primary cash AREHZ FEHRSERAEAKSLSH T LR
requirements include payments for operating expenses and BERNEME BEMEEARBEREEF
additions or upgrades of property, plant and equipment and A7 FROE o

intangible assets.

The undiscounted contractual maturity profile of the Group’s RERR REBZSMABBZ RIS
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period, based #) 7 B HE BT AR 45 AN 52 B A ¥ o5 HR oK e 4%
on the earliest date on which the Group is required to settle NemBBEexFHEEE #ulmT :

the financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period is
summarised below:

Total
Total contractual Within After 1 and
carrying undiscounted 1 year or within

value cash fow On demand 5 years
S EoR

BE=R AREIAEE BiEEE BiERE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT BT BETT

Trade and other payables  FE{FBR 7 M H b FE (S 5k 162,092 162,092 162,092 -
Borrowings BE 219,956 219,956 141,049 78,907
Corporate bonds NG 5,530 5,530 5,530 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 197 197 197 -

387,775 387,775 308,868 78,907
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38. SREMREEEEREE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued) nBESRR(E)
2020
—E_%F
Total
Total contractual Within  After 1 and
carrying undiscounted 1 year or within
value cash flow  On demand 5 years
TEHAB R
= FRE AR EiEEE EiE R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

BETT BETT BT BT

Trade and other payables  FE{FBR FX K H b FE S 7k 163,447 163,447 163,447 =
Borrowings BE 185,944 185,944 127,133 58,811
Corporate bonds NEfESH 11,132 11,132 11,132 =
Lease liabilities HERE 757 757 560 197
361,280 361,280 302,272 59,008
Exposure to currency risk B Rk
The following table details the Group’s exposure at the TRAVNAEBNR RSB REiR 2 B R
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from BENBENEBEERIGEEEUIINZ &
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency SIEMELEZEEER - AETE2Y Rk
other than the functional currency of the entity to which TREFRAFE R 2 WmEERRE B BET
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of the e

exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using
the closing rate at the year end date.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38. SREMREEEERKE(E
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Exposure to currency risk (continued) ExEpm(E)

2020
3
United United
States States
(Expressed in Hong Kong thousand dollars) Dollars Metical Renminbi Dollars Metical Renminbi
ERUR EEd i)

(WEBT AT i BEFER N EI T ARE
Property, plant and equipment 0% BERRE 114 1338 8,664 212 4274 10,577
Construction in progress EEIR - 6,581 434,078 = 7,556 398,193
Intangible assets EYAE - - - - - 724
Inventory k5 - - - - 278 -
Goodwill s - - - - 2,358 114,613
Trade and other receivables FEUCRR TR AL RN 35,770 3,328 781,055 39,57 19,956 951,127
Bank balances and cash KiTEBIGRS 64 3 7,266 114 107 534
Trade and other payables RS RE 3 (3,707) (115)  (132,548) (1,352) (1562 (135,344)
Borrowings [EE - - (180,400) - - (41,844)
Tax payable EfE (2.531) (3,568) (209) (5,421) (3,879) (1,132)
Deferred income ETRA - - (58,850) = = (55,813)
Expostre arising from ERREERARELZAR

recognised assets and liabilities 29,710 6,546 859,056 33,080 29,088 1,241,635
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities HEeHEENEHERS
No financial assets and financial liabilities were subject to RZEZ—FR_F_FTF=-—HA=1+—A8"
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and MECREERERBEAELRE ATHT
similar arrangements as at 31 March 2021 and 2020. 5 AR & BE
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39.

40.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide returns for shareholders. The Group manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments, including
payment of dividend to shareholders, return of capital to
shareholders or issue of new shares or sale of assets to
reduce debts. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes during the years ended 31 March 2021
and 2020.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following table presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows:

o Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

o Level 2 valuations: fair values measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

39.

40.

FEFFEEZERAERAT  2020-2021F 3K

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mAEUHRERME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-ZE - F=-A=1+—HILEE

EARERE
AEEZEAEEBZAREARERAR
DA B S BB R 2 - W AR R IR (A
W AEETBEEEAEBRIELAE &
FEMRRIRER L - AR R B & AN EHT
TR EEEARBEER RNEEZS
R E_EF-A=1+—HLEFE
W AEEWEEREIZ  BORSRER o

ATEHE
TREJNERPRREBMBRELERE
BRAFEFEMREATFESZRFNEZ=
BERNATEFESMIAZKREE R
FEFTEMRE D 2 ERID2 R T AERM
FTABASBBZABEEERAEENE
E

o F1AMAE: ENEE1REAREKR
REEREEZRMSTHEREEXA
BZHRECRERR)FEQAFE-

o F24MHE : MAF2RBRAZREGEIR
HEFIENABERBARE AX T
NMAEETABRBARB)FELT
B TR EBRGABIBERTSHETA
BB ABE-

. E3MEE: IAERTTBERAY
B BATE-
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40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 40. AVEFE(E
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities THREINAEER_ZT_—F=HA=1T—H
that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2021. BAFEFENEERERE-

Fair Value Measurement
DPEHE

Carrying

amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

REf 18 £2 3% s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BB BETT

Liabilities 8
Contingent consideration payables ERSARE 14,629 - - 14,629 14,629
Total liabilities BaE 14,629 - - 14,629 14,629
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities TREJAKRER_F_FTF=A=1+—H
Ll AN V2 =l = p2 (== ®
that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2020. BRAFEFENEERRIR
Fair Vialue Measurement
DFEHE
Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
KEE 18 EPH 230 it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB BEfr  B¥TT  RETR
Liabilities 8
Contingent consideration payables ERSARE 11,200 = = 11,200 11,200
Total liabilities Baf 11,200 - - 11,200 11,200
Note: Hfat -
There were no transfers between any levels during the year. RAFER  FR 6 EEHE -
The detail on fair value measurement of the contingent consideration RN HAREN R FER EFBHNM =27 -

payable was set out in Note 27.
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HE-_T-_—F=-A=1+—HLFE

41. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 41. REHERSBE
Subsequent Event HE=EE
the Group had no material event subsequent to the end of AEERRERE REEARERHTE
reporting period and up to the date of this report. EAEIE-
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Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-T - —F=A=1+—HILFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42.

COMPANY

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the statement of financial position of
the Company and the movements in its reserves are set out

below:

KAz MBRRE

REBEEBARIGH < WERE  NABZH

B R MR EEBEIIIT

2020
—E-TF
Note HK$’000
k23 BT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries KRB RARZI’E 4,800 4,800

Current assets REEE
Other receivables H oA e UK 356 3,850
Due from subsidiaries NG B 1,577,206 1,413,051
Bank balances and cash IRTTHER LIRS 494 1,508
1,578,056 1,418,409
Current liabilities REBEE

Borrowings = 127,956 88,400
Corporate bonds NalfEH 5,530 11,132
Other payables H At R R 18,745 13,272
Due to subsidiaries FEHI B R R FUE 106,640 13,121
258,871 125,925
Net current assets REEEFE 1,319,185 1,292,484

Non-current liabilities knBEE
Borrowings EE - 37,700
Contingent consideration payables — FEffSiAR(E 14,629 11,200
14,629 48,900
NET ASSETS EERE 1,309,356 1,248,384

CAPITAL AND RESERVES AR e
Share capital R A 29 49,137 42,260
Reserves i 42(a) 1,260,219 1,206,124
TOTAL EQUITY ERBEE 1,309,356 1,248,384

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 29 June 2021 and signed on its behalf by

Liu Rongsheng
BERE
Chairman

FE
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. RDQTRZHBEMRREK(E
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(@) Reserves (a) f&#E

Share Contributed Accumulated

premium surplus losses Total
RGEE EON:L ZiFE Ait
Note (Note (i) (Note (i)
(In HK$'000) (NEBTRAER) firzt (W) (W)
At 1 April 2019 R-F-NEBA-A 1,378,822 594,707 (781,758) 1,191,771
Profit for the year and total comprehensive ~ EREFRERZ ANGLE
income for the year - - 14,353 14,353
Transactions with equity holders HRESFAETLRS
Contributions and distributions AERA K
Issue of shares upon placing RicEMETRA - - - -
At 31 March 2020 R-B-EE=A=1-H 1378822 594,707 (767,405 1,206,124
Loss for the year and total comprehensive ERRARER
income for the year FEYRASE = = (32,962) (32,962)
Transactions with equity holders HREREARTZRS
Contributions and distributions EERDE
Issue of shares upon placing in July 2020 RIB-BELAREER
ki3 29) 9,375 - - 9,375
Issue of shares upon placing in October 2020  N=E-F4+RREER
&t 290i) 4,035 - - 4435
Issue of shares upon conversion of debts RZB-BE - ARERER
in December 2020 ESa 0 29(i) 17,319 - - 17,319
Issue of shares upon placing in December 2020 RA=Z=FF+- AREELS
Rip 29() 21,962 - - 21,962
Issue of shares upon placing in acquisition RERE N BRRRERT
in an associate ) 2901) 33,966 S = 33,966
87,057 - - 87,057
At 31 March 2021 RoB--£=A=t-A 1,465,879 594,707 (800,367) 1,260,219
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BE

——E=A=t—ALEE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

180

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Reserves (continued)

Note:

(@)

(if)

(i)

Share premium represents the excess of the net
proceeds or consideration from issuance of the
Company'’s shares over their par value.

Contributed surplus represents (i) the difference
between the nominal value of the aggregate share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued as consideration
pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation took place in
2001, (ii) the reduction of share premium and share
capital took place in November 2012 and May 2013
respectively.

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the Company’s
contributed surplus is available for distribution to
shareholders subject to the requirements of the
Companies Act of Bermuda.

As at 31 March 2021, no reserves of the Company
were available for distribution to the equity holders
of the Company (2020: Nil) in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act of Bermuda.

42. ARTZMBRRRE(E

(a) BE(E)
Wizt :

iy WROBEERBTARTABRNEREZ
PR FERKERBEEEL

55 -

(i)  BARBEORE-ZT—FHETH
755 B S48 P UK BB B BB R R A AR AN
ZHEEEESKEMETZARA
BinEEZEZR: (HDRR=_F—=
FT+—AR—ZE—=FRAETH
HIL R B 10 a8 18 B2 R A S o

BREEREARE ARTNEA
HAHIETRE - BT E
SRR o

iy R-TE-—F=A=+—0 REH
FEDNRLERE AR A EAES
BPARRREREAZEHE (=ZF
—TFE) o
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43. SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mAEUHRERME (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE-ZE - F=-A=1+—HILEE

43. B A T

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at

31 March 2021 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
Name of subsidiary operation
ERAL/
WEAEER BRRSEY
Business Ahead Management Limited Hong Kong
EREBARAA &R
China Ocean Life Technology Limited Hong Kong
REEFENHRARRA &R
Golden Thai Marine Products Group Limited Hong Kong
SREESHARAT &R
Global United Investment Consultants Hong Kong
Limited
BRG-REBRARAR &R
Mindsim Limited Hong Kong
i
Rich Flash Limited Hong Kong
FARRAR &R
Wisdom Glory Technology Limited Hong Kong
BRMRERAA &R
Jin Yu Tang (Shenzhen) The PRC
Fishery Group Co.,Ltd*
ATEEZREERERAR il

R-EBE-—F=A=+—H ARARETEH
BARZFBWOT

Nominal value of Percentage of equity

issued ordinary
shares/
registered capital
BRTEER
HfE/ ARELX

HK$1
BRI

HK$1
BBIT

HK$1

BB

HK$2
(Note g)
BT
(Hrztg)

HK$10,000
BRI

HK$10,000
(Note g)
BRI
(frztg)

HK$1

(Note g)
BT
(Hitg)
RMB50,000,000

AK#50,000,0007T

indirectly
attributable
to the Company  Principal activities
KAABEER
REEAL FEEH
100%  Provision of administration service
RAEEBRE
100%  Inactive during the year
TEREER
100%  Provision of trading of seafood,
investment holding and securities
holding
RUtBERE S REERRAEEES
100%  Provision of money lending service
R SR
100%  Inactive during the year
TEEEER
100%  Investment holding and supply chain
management services
RABRR AR EER R
100%  Holding of property
2R
100%  Provision of supply chain management

services, trading of seafood

REHEREERELEERES
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43. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 43. MIBRR (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at RZEBE-—F=A=+—8 A2RFEN
31 March 2021 are as follows: (continued) BARZHENT (&)

Place of Nominal value of Percentage of equity

incorporation/ issued ordinary indirectly
registration and shares/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
ML/ BRTEER KA RERER
WEARER BRREELY HE/ EMEX RERA TEEK
Shen Zhen Qianhai Yuheng Industry Chain The PRC HK$100,000,000 100%  Provision of supply chain management
Co., Ltd* (Note a, g) service, trading of seafood
AFETEEXRERARLA e 7%%100,000,000 REHEREERELEERE S
(Wita-g)
Shenzhen Yu Heng SCM LTD.* The PRC RMB1,000,000 100%  Inactive during the year
(Note b, g)
AmTFEHREREEARAT] mE AR¥1,000,0007 AERERT
(Bb - g)
Shenzhen Yuheng Trade Management Co., The PRC RMB500,000,000 100%  Provision of supply chain management
Ltd* service, trading of seafood
MIFEEHERARAH mE  AR%500,000,0007 REEEEERRELEENE
Yu Heng Shipping (Hainan) Company The PRC RMB100,000,000 100% Inactive during the year
Limited* (Note ¢)
FoEMHK(EH) BRAT mE  AR%100,000,0007 REREEH
(Hiztc)
Jin Yu Tang (Cambodia) Fishery Co., Ltd Cambodia US$10,000,000 100%  Inactive during the year
(Note d)
EEZRE(RBR)ERAT REF 10,000,000% 7 AERERH
(Hiitd)
Great Truths Developments Limited British Virgin US$1 100%  Inactive during the year
Islands (Note h)
REERERAA EBRNES 1% AEREER
(Hzth)
Shenzhen Qisen Fishery Company Limited The PRC RMB100,000,000 70%  Provision of ocean fishing in
Mozambique
ARFFEXARAA mE  AR%100,000,0007 RUERRERNEFHE
Stonechen Commercial - Mozambique MT5,000,000 100%  Provision of ocean fishing in
Produtos Da Pesca De Moma Limitada Mozambique
MERRAERSAEREARAR ERUR 5,000,000£% REEERN R OB EE
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43.

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mAEUHRERME (&)

43. MEATR (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at
31 March 2021 are as follows: (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

China Ocean Industrial Investment Holding
Limited

PEEFEXRARNARLE

Lianyungang Anni Ocean Fishing Co Ltd

BEBEERAREERAR
Jin Yu Tang Property Co., Ltd*

ATEEEERARDA

Shenzhen Yuduoduo Ocean Technology Co.,

Ltd
A MBS EENEERAR

Jin Yu Tang Ocean Aquaculture (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd*
FmEEEEFEABRAR

Jin Yu Tang Aquaclture (Cambodia) Co., Ltd
EXERB(RER)ERAR

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation
ML/
BRRSEY

Hong Kong
&R

The PRC

M
The PRC

I

The PRC

M

The PRC
hE

Cambodia

e

Nominal value of
issued ordinary
shares/
registered capital
BRITEER
HfE/ ARELX

HKD10,000,000
78#10,000,0007T

RMB30,000,000

AK#30,000,0007

RMB5,000,000
(Note e)
ARE5,000,0007
(Bizte)

RMB 10,000,000
(Note f)
AE#10,000,0007
(Hizf)
RMB5,000,000

AKE5,000,0007C

USD5,000
5,000% 7

Year ended 31 March 2021

HE-_T-_—F=-A=1+—HLFE

RZEZ—F=A=+—H ARaFZEH
BARZFENT (&)

Percentage of equity
indirectly
attributable

to the Company

RAFERES
REESL

100%

65%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

IERH

Provision of supply chain management
service, trading of seafood

REMEBEERENEERES

Provision of ocean fishing, however, the
operation commenced subsequent to
the year end

REUEETHS  EREREARRRK

Inactive during the year

AEEERH

Intangible assets holding

RAEVAE

Inactive during the year

AERERH

Inactive during the year

AEEERH

* for identification purpose only

* EHEE
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43.

44,

T ®ZA=+—HULEFE

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at
31 March 2021 are as follows: (continued)

Notes:

(@)  The registered capital is HK$100,000,000 and has to be
injected on or before 1 January 2024.

(b)  The registered capital is RMB1,000,000 and has to be injected
on or before 1 May 2023.

() The registered capital is RMB100,000,000, paid up capital
is RMB88,000,000 and has to be injected on or before 31
December 2058.

(d)  The registered capital is USD10,000,000 and paid up capital is
USD3,760,000 during the year ended 31 March 2021.

(e)  The registered capital is RMB5,000,000 and has to be injected
on or before 31 December 2065.

(f)  The registered capital is RMB10,000,000 and paid up capital is
RMB2,300,000 during the year ended 31 March 2021.

(g)  The subsidiary was disposed during the year ended 31 March
2021.

(h)  The subsidiary was deregistered during the year ended 31
March 2021.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the reporting period or at anytime during both years.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Cash and bank balance of approximately HK$7,272,000
(2020: approximately HK$539,000) are held in the PRC and
are subject to local exchange control regulations. These
exchange control regulations provide for restrictions on
exporting capital from the country, other than through
normal dividends.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
with the current year’s presentation.

43.

44,
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MEBAT(E)
RZEBE-_—F=A=+—8 ' AARTEHN
BRRZHENT (&)

Bz -

(a) FEMEAAEBEE100,000,000TF HR =F
—E—A—HB®ZANEA

(b) FEMERAEARY1,000000THEBER-Z
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(0 FEMEAXRAEARE100,000,0005T &5 2
&N & AR K-8,000,000  WARZE
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(d BE-_Z-_—=-A=+—"HULEFE:*
fit & X 10,000,000 T & B & & & &
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